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1 Overview
Executive Summary
As a State Statutory Authority with responsibilities for promoting socio-economic
development in the Kimberley, the Commission is uniquely placed to make a difference
in a young, cross-cultural region that has great potential and equally great challenges to
overcome. In this context, the completion of “2036 and Beyond: A Regional Blueprint for
the Kimberley” consistent with Western Australian Government policy, has been a major
priority for the Commission in 2014/2015. As the first comprehensive document of its
kind in the region it will complement regional planning and guide project development,
infrastructure, service delivery and regional investment well into the future. Preparation
of the Blueprint is complemented by a ‘bigger picture’ strategic focus on a future
Kimberley. The Blueprint points to key methodologies to achieve enhanced outcomes
for the entire regional community. Key stakeholder engagement and targeted, specific
research has informed the development of every chapter; the aspirational targets; and
key performance indicators presented in the Blueprint.
To ensure implementation of the Blueprint continues to be evidence based, the
Commission has built a regional modelling capability jointly with its collaborating
partners at Curtin University. The model is being developed as a ‘proof of concept’ in
the Kimberley and has potential to be ‘game changing’ for the region as it enables
decision-making to consider a range of impacts. The Commission has commenced
modelling impacts simultaneously on the people, place and prosperity of the Kimberley.
This year, the Commission has also engaged with key regional stakeholders to
implement two Royalties for Regions funding rounds and further progress
implementation of major initiatives that are consistent with the Blueprint. These include:
the West Kimberley Transitional Housing project in partnership with the Department of
Housing, with 40 houses in Broome and 20 in Derby planned for Aboriginal people in
employment. This assists in positioning Broome for development as a regional centre in
partnership with the Shire of Broome and LandCorp. Projects such as this build
community and go some way to attracting resource sector, agricultural and tourism
investment and development.
Simultaneously, the Commission has contributed to the development of enhanced
operating arrangements within the regional development portfolio which focuses on
greater collaboration between the Department of Regional Development and the nine
Regional Development Commissions (RDCs). Recognising the needs of the Kimberley’s
160 remote Communities, it has also provided input into the development of the
Regional Services Reform project.
These achievements have been underpinned by a continued high level of compliance
with legislation and government policy and overall performance.
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Chairperson’s Report
At this potentially catalytic time of advancement in the Kimberley, it is both an honour
and tremendous opportunity to have been appointed as Chair of the Kimberley
Development Commission by the Minister for Regional Development.
The Commission congratulates, Ralph Addis the outgoing Chair, on his appointment as
Director General, Department of Regional Development and looks forward to working
with him and our Regional Development Commission colleagues to further enhance the
operations of the regional development portfolio. Ralph made a major contribution to the
development of “2036 and Beyond: A Regional Blueprint for the Kimberley” and remains
a strong advocate for collaboration to achieve the aspirational targets it sets.
Importantly, we set targets for growth in key industry and service sectors that will create
and sustain population in the region. We do that in full recognition that development
creates impacts that need to be transparently considered in conjunction with benefits.
As we accelerate Blueprint implementation, the focus will be on developing and
securing investment for major strategic initiatives that are built on an increasingly strong
body of evidence. This has prompted the Commission to engage in an exciting private
public partnership, described in the Agency performance section of this report, to trial
regional impact modelling – work that has not previously been undertaken in regional
Australia.
Critically, as a region, we now need to help shape policies and services that will
enhance outcomes for our community and together, move decisively toward a future
where policy and services are finetuned so that welfare dependency is a thing of the
past and everyone has opportunities and viable choices for enjoying good health,
education, housing and employment.
The Kimberley is full of energy and innovation and if harnessed through the
collaboration and direction that the Blueprint proposes has unlimited and unmet
potential.
The Commission enjoys the support of the Minister and has already commenced this
work with key regional stakeholders. We are committed to using the opportunity
presented by the Blueprint, the regional modelling and the focus on both the
Commonwealth and State funding of regional services, to set the course for an
enhanced future for our region that will also benefit the State.
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The Kimberley Region
Demographically, the Kimberley is a young, flourishing region with an estimated
resident population of 39,900 comprising 46% Aboriginal people, spread across a
region twice the size of Victoria in four Local Government Areas, six towns and
approximately 160 Aboriginal Communities.
The expansive sub tropical region is largely a dissected plateau of ancient sedimentary
rock, interspersed by igneous intrusions and metamorphic rock that supports six major
river systems, associated gorge country and estuaries, expansive savannah grass
lands, patches of tropical rain forest and a magnificent coast line. This geomorphology
underpins the regional community’s traditional cultures, outdoor lifestyles and main
industries of resources, agriculture, including horticulture and pastoral industry, tourism
and retail.
New parcels of irrigated agricultural land are being established in both the East and
West Kimberley. With the completion of the four year Ord/East Kimberley Expansion
Project in 2013, the Ord River Irrigation Area has doubled in size from 14,000 hectares
with the potential for it to increase to 35,000 hectares. New farm land has been
established in the Knowsley Plain Area between Broome and Derby through the Seizing
the Opportunity – Agriculture Statewide initiative and water and soil studies have been
progressed to determine the potential for development of Cockatoo Sands in the East
Kimberley and La Grange south of Broome. The State Government is also working with
the Northern Territory Government to support irrigated agricultural land development
across the WA/NT Border.
Asian markets offer a close and substantial export opportunity for agriculture in northern
Australia, on which the Kimberley is poised to capitalise in addition to domestic markets.
Similarly, Asia is also interested in the region’s resource exports and increasingly
tourism opportunities.
The wealth of mineral deposits and oil and gas in the region include heavy rare earth
and nickel near the former gold mining town of Halls Creek, substantial oil and gas
reserves, onshore in the Canning Basin to the southwest and off shore in the Browse
Basin and the lamprorite pipe which supports the Argyle Diamond Mine Underground
project.
Since the Global Financial Crisis caused the tourism market to shift away from
international toward domestic tourism, new product and innovative marketing has been
critical. Indigenous tourism, adventure and eco-tourism products are being enhanced
across the region, some in association with the State’s Kimberley Science and
Conservation Strategy and others designed to capture increasing Chinese interest.
The blend of traditional and contemporary social values, young energy, diverse
experience and ancient wisdom, rich environment and Asian opportunity with the
focussed strategy of the “2036 and Beyond, a Blueprint for the Kimberley” are placing
the Kimberley in a unique position of advantage to meet the future.
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.Operational

Structure

This section includes the Commission’s legislative base, responsible Minister,
organisational structure and Board Member profiles.

Enabling Legislation
The Commission is a Western Australian Statutory Authority that was established under
the Regional Development Commissions Act 1993 (as amended) and is subject to the
provisions of the Public Sector Management Act 1994.

Statutory Objectives and Functions
The objectives of the Kimberley Development Commission, as defined in Section 23 (1)
of the Regional Development Commissions Act 1993, are to:
 maximise job creation and improve career opportunities in the region;
 develop and broaden the economic base of the region;
 identify infrastructure services to promote economic and social development
within the region;
 provide information and advice to promote business development within the
region;
 seek to ensure that the general standard of government services and access to
those services in the region is comparable to that which applies in the
metropolitan area; and
 generally take steps to encourage, promote, facilitate and monitor the economic
development in the region.

Responsible Minister
The Commission is responsible to the Hon Terry Redman, MLA, Minister for Regional
Development; Lands; Minister Assisting the Minister for State Development.
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Reporting Structure
As an accountable authority, the Commission advises the Minister on matters affecting
the development of the region and its Board sets the strategic directions for the
Commission.

Parliament
Minister for Regional Development; Lands;
Minister Assisting the Minister for State
Development

Kimberley Development Commission
Kimberley Development Commission Board
Chairperson &
Nine Board Members

KDC Chief Executive
and Staff

Consultants as required
with the Minister’s approval

KDC Advisory Committees
(appointed as required)

Assistance of other
Government Agencies
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Board Profiles
Consistent with the Regional Development Commission’s Act 1993, the Kimberley
Development Commission’s Board, which is appointed by the Minister, comprises:
 three members representing the regional community;
 three members representing Local Government;
 three members appointed at the Minister’s discretion; and
 the Kimberley Development Commission’s Chief Executive.
The Members of the Board at 30 June 2015 were:

Mr Michael McConachy, Chairperson
Ministerial representative – appointed 2015 – term expires 2018
Mr McConachy moved to the Kimberley in 2009 with his
family, bringing a wealth of business and leadership
experience with him in the areas of business, tourism,
agriculture, construction and aviation.
As a Managing Director of several local Companies,
including: Helicopter Film Services Pty Ltd trading as
HeliSpirit, Freshwater Quality Management Pty Ltd, of
which he is also Owner, Kimberley Land Holdings Pty Ltd, H.M. Developments Pty Ltd
and Top End Building Company, he has a strong understanding of governance and
accountability. He has used this in a voluntary capacity as a founding Committee
Member and Chairperson of the recently established East Kimberley Marketing Group.
Mr McConachy is also a past Council President, St Joseph’s School, Kununurra.
Since 1999, Mr McConachy has been Owner/Managing Director, Agrivision
International Pty Ltd and Managing Director, Integrated Dairies of Australia Pty Ltd.
Prior to this he worked as; Agricultural Consultant, Riverina F.A.R.M (Financial and
Rural Management), Farm Manager, Strathfieldsaye Estate (University of Melbourne)
and General Manager, International Agribusiness Australia.
Mr McConachy is committed to regional development of the Kimberley in partnership
with regional stakeholders in recognition of its potential.
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Mr Ian Trust, Deputy Chairperson
Community representative – reappointed 2015 - term expires 2018
Mr Trust has a background in Aboriginal affairs and
management in the East Kimberley. His former positions
include Administrator, East Kimberley Aboriginal Medical
Services (now Ord Valley Aboriginal Health Services),
Chairperson Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
Commission, Wunan Regional Council and later WA Commissioner Kimberley Region.
He is currently Chair, Aarnja Ltd, Executive Director of
Wunan and Chair, Jawun Kimberley Advisory Group. He is Deputy Chair of the
Kimberley Development Commission.
Mr Trust believes the basis of any region is a strong economy with access to regional
opportunities. To enable people to access the opportunities affordable housing and
good quality education is required. He believes a measure of success of government
policy and funding in the Kimberley is the social and economic enhancement of the
Aboriginal people in the region.

Cr Graeme Campbell, Member
Local Government representative – reappointed 2015 - term expires 2018
Cr Campbell was elected to the Shire of Broome Council in 2003
and has held the office of President since 2005. He has also held a
range of appointments including; Chairperson, Kimberley Zone for
four years, former Chair of the Kimberley Area Consultative
Committee (the forerunner to Regional Development Australia),
Deputy Member WA State Grants Commission, Member,
Australian Institute of Company Directors, Chair of Regional Road
Group for the Kimberley and a Member of the Kimberley Regional
Planning Committee. He is currently Chair of Regional
Development Australia Kimberley Division and various other local
Government Committees. Through these roles he has gained
broad experience in Local Government, business, tourism and Aboriginal Affairs.
Cr Campbell’s preference is for economic development that facilitates the social and
cultural aspects of the region whilst also encouraging development in the agricultural,
pastoral and mining sectors.
Cr Campbell considers the key issues for the Kimberley to include housing, the
affordability and delivery of municipal and normalized services, the cost of doing
business and the need for government servicing to be commensurate with metropolitan
areas. He is keen to see long term opportunities for Kimberley people.
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Cr John Moulden, Member
Local Government representative - appointed 2015 - term expires 2018
Cr Moulden has served as a Councillor, Shire of Wyndham East
Kimberley (SWEK) from 2007 holding the offices of Deputy Shire
President from 2009-2011 and President, from 2011 to 2015. He
is also a Member of the Kimberley Planning Committee and
formerly held the position of Chairperson, Ord Land and Water, a
Kununurra community Natural Resource Management Group.
Having a professional background in Entomology and
agriculture, Cr Moulden moved to the Kimberley in 2000 from the
South West of Western Australia, where he owned a market
gardening business and diversified into tourism.
Cr Moulden gained a sound understanding of the Kimberley agricultural industry whilst
employed as the Regional Entomologist, Department of Agriculture and Food WA from
2000 to 2009 and has since worked as an Agricultural Consultant.
Key areas of interest for Cr Moulden in the development of the Kimberley are
maximising offshore opportunities, attracting investment and increasing Aboriginal
participation in the mainstream economy.

Cr Malcolm Edwards, Member
Local Government representative - appointed 2015 - term expires 2017
Cr Edwards has lived and worked in the Kimberley for forty
five years gaining wide ranging experience including owning
and operating a local supermarket and transport service in
Halls Creek and holding the appointment of Chief Executive
Officer, Menkawum Ngurra-Halls Creek People Church
Aged Care Facility. He has served as a Councilor, Shire of
Halls Creek for seventeen years and currently is the Shire
President, a position which he has previously held for seven
years.
Having gained a sound understanding of socio-economic issues and non Aboriginal and
Aboriginal disparity in the Kimberley through his professional and family life, Cr Edwards
has an interest in enhancing the quality of life in rural communities, especially in
education, business and infrastructure development and effective service delivery. He is
especially interested in empowering Traditional Owners through enhanced leadership in
all sectors.
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Ms Eunice Yu
Community representative – appointed 2012 - term expires 2015
Ms Yu is a Yawuru person currently employed by the Kimberley
Institute, in Broome.
Ms Yu’s preferences for development in the Kimberley are for all
residents to benefit economically, socially and culturally with
development decisions being made at a local / regional level and
based on inclusive engagement of relevant stakeholders and at a
cross-sectoral level. Places that are valued by the Community
should be protected and the region promoted and celebrated.
She considers her potential Contribution to the Board includes
personal attributes of level headedness, integrity, loyalty, honesty
and accountability, an Indigenous woman’s perspective and
views, networks and linkages with engagement opportunities and stakeholders. Ms Yu’s
community profile is gained through employment, volunteering and representation.
Ms Yu sees the State’s changing demography, Native Title determinations,
displacement of community members and associated impact on communities,
subsequent service delivery pressures and the need for balanced economic social and
cultural imperatives with appropriate access to resources, as key issues.

Cr June Oscar AO
Community representative – appointed 2015 - term expires 2018
Cr Oscar is a Bunuba Traditional Owner who was born in
Fitzroy Crossing and in 2012 she was appointed as an
Ambassador for Children and Young People in Western
Australia and was awarded the Office of the Order of
Australia (AO) in 2013. June was the winner of the
Westpac and Financial Review 100 Women of Influence
2013 for Social Enterprise and Not for Profit Category. In
2014 June was awarded the Menzies School of Health
Research Medallion for her work with Foetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder.
Cr Oscar is an established leader and strong advocate for the quality of life for
Aboriginal people with a strong background working for Aboriginal Organisations,
human rights and Aboriginal justice and especially the prevention of Foetal Alcohol
Spectrum Disorder. In this capacity she has held numerous offices and currently holds
the positions of Company Director, Bunuba Pty Ltd and Bunuba Cattle Company, is
past Chairperson, Kimberley Language and Resource Centre, Chief Investigator,
Lililwan Prevalence Study – on Foetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder and Early Life
Trauma, Council Member, Australian Institute for Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander
Studies and Committee Member, Fitzroy Valley Futures’ Governing Committee.
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She has a Bachelor of Business Degree and qualifications in Management of
Indigenous Organisations, Community and Public Administration and Governance.
Currently Chief Executive Officer, Marninwarntikura Women’s Resource Centre, Fitzroy
Crossing. She has also held the positions of Office Manager, Bunuba Pty Ltd 2002 and
Deputy Director, Kimberley Land Council 1997-2000.

Mr Robert Banfield, Member
Ministerial representative – appointed 2012 - term expires 2015
Robert Banfield is Managing Director of Willie Creek Pearls and
has owned the business with his family since 1989. He has lived
in Broome for over 20 years, and been a significant part of the
business community.
Robert’s focus is on providing strategic leadership and vision for
the diverse portfolio that has expanded to include six Willie Creek
Pearls showrooms in Broome and Perth, the multi award winning
Willie Creek Pearl Farm, Broome Sightseeing Tour, Pearl Luggers
Tour and Banfield Property Developments.
During his career, he has led the organizational growth of the company in the Tourism,
Retail and Property Industries, including overseeing the company’s national and
international presence.
Robert has been an active participant on committees in Broome industry and is
currently sits a Board Member, Australia’s North West Tourism.
Considering diversification and strategic investment as essential elements to successful
business outcomes, Robert’s vision is for a strong economic base across all industries
in the Kimberley that provides the essential support and social services required to
maintain a regional balance.

Mr Robert Boshammer, Member
Ministerial representative - appointed 2012 - term expires 2015
Mr Boshammer is a graduate of Queensland Agricultural
College and has been a prominent and leading Ord River
Irrigation Area grower for over 20 years. He has a
development and equity position in a number of associated
businesses including nurseries, forestry management
services, tourism, produce marketing and irrigation and
pastoral business development and describes his passion as
the empowerment of people in regional areas to facilitate
world-class business development.
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Mr Boshammer’s preferences for development in the Kimberley focus on increasing
local decision making and decision making by Indigenous people with ‘less control and
rubber stamping’ from above and streamlined bureaucratic processes that allow small
business and communities to develop and ‘have a go’. He would also like to see
increased availability of affordable living blocks in support of people that wish to move
ahead.
He considers his potential contribution to the Board includes expertise in small
business, management and development and an ability to identify and articulate major
hurdles holding back business development. Rob believes that small business is most
attuned to people and worker’s needs, in particular Indigenous people.
Mr Jeff Gooding – Member, Ex Officio
Chief Executive
Mr Gooding has held the position of Chief Executive of the
Kimberley Development Commission since the Commission’s
establishment and is a Member of the Board of the Commission.
He is a long term resident of Kununurra and the Kimberley, has
qualifications in town and regional planning, is a graduate and
fellow of the Australian Rural Leadership Foundation, Member of
the Australian Institute of Company Directors and is Justice of the
Peace and former Shire Councillor.
Having participated in the negotiation process which culminated in
several key Native Title Agreements, Mr Gooding continues to be substantially involved
in related implementation including as a Director of the Miriuwung Gajerrong
Community Foundation. He has been closely involved in the development, and initial
implementation, of the Ord/East Kimberley Expansion Project, most recently in Release
Panels and the Community Reference Group.
Other regional roles include membership of the Kimberley Regional Planning
Committee, Chairman Kimberley Workforce Development Alliance and Chairman or
member of various regional steering and coordinating groups.
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Advisory Committees
The Board is empowered to appoint advisory committees to assist in providing specialist
advice to the Board. These committees which are established on a needs basis,
currently include the Risk Management and Audit Sub-Committee and the Kimberley
Aviation Tourism Development Committee.

Senior Officers
Mr Jeff Gooding, PSM, Chief Executive
Mr Gooding has a background in planning and extensive regional development and
leadership experience gained through the WA Public Sector, involvement with regional
industry and community.

Mr Tim Bray, Director, Regional Planning & Projects Delivery
Mr Bray, BSc. B Comm (Hons) has extensive experience in business, finance, and
project management in the private sector. He has worked in regional development in the
Kimberley for seven years.

Organisational Chart – Staff

Chief
Executive

Director, Regional
Planning &
Projects Delivery
Director

Executive Officer

Manager,
Business Planning
& Corporate

Manager, People
& Place

Manager,
Research, Analysis
& Economics

Manager,
Industry &
Infrastructure

Grants & Projects
Officer

Finance Officer
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Legislation impacting on the Commission’s Activities
In performing its regional development function, the Commission has complied with the
following legislation:
 Regional Development Commissions Act 1993
 Financial Management Act 2006
 Auditor General Act 2003
 Royalties for Regions Act 2009
 Contaminated Sites Act 2003
 Disability Services Act 1993
 Equal Opportunity Act 1984
 Freedom of Information Act 1992
 Fringe Benefits Tax Act 1986
 Government Employees Housing Act 1964
 Government Employees Superannuation Act 1987
 Industrial Relations Act 1979
 Minimum Conditions of Employment Act 1993
 Occupational Safety and Health Act 1984
 Public Sector Management Act 1994
 Salaries and Allowances Act 1975
 State Records Act 2000
 State Supply Commission Act 1991
 Workers Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981
 Legal Deposit Act 2012
The Commission also exercises controls which provide reasonable assurance that the
receipt, expenditure and investment of monies, the acquisition and disposal of public
property and incurring of liabilities are in accordance with legislative provisions.
At the date of signing this Annual Report, the Commission is not aware of any
circumstances that would render the particulars included in this statement misleading or
inaccurate.
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Performance Management Framework
Committed to a ‘whole of government’ approach to fulfilling its Statutory Objectives and
Functions the Commission simultaneously contributes towards the Governments Goals:
 Results-based Service Delivery - Greater focus on achieving results in key
service delivery areas for the benefit of all Western Australians.


Financial and Economic Responsibility - Responsibly managing the State’s
finances through the efficient and effective delivery of services, encouraging
economic activity and reducing regulatory burdens on the private sector.



Social and Environmental Responsibility - Ensuring that economic activity is
managed in a socially and environmentally responsible manner for the long-term
benefit of the State.



Stronger Focus on the Regions - Greater focus on service delivery,
infrastructure investment and economic development to improve the overall
quality of life in remote and regional areas.



State Building – Major Projects - Building strategic infrastructure that will
create jobs and underpin Western Australia’s long-term economic development.
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Outcome Based Management Framework
The Commission’s Outcome Based Management Framework comprises an annual
Resource Agreement between the Minister, the Commission and the Treasurer. This
provides the basis for the Commission’s work, budget appropriation and reporting to
government by establishing a desired outcome consistent with the Commission’s
legislative responsibilities and the Governments Goals, agreed targets for efficiency and
effectiveness and two high level services/result areas:

Desired Outcome
An environment conducive to the balanced economic and social development of the
Kimberley region.

Service 1
The Commission will provide effective
regional development policies and
strategies together with accurate and
accessible information on the region to
facilitate and support the economic and
social development of the region.

Service 2
The Commission will identify, coordinate and promote through its major
strategies
the
establishment,
improvement and diversification of the
region’s infrastructure, industries and
enterprises.

Strategic Planning
To meet its legislative obligations, ensure its contribution toward the Government Goals
and regional development in the Kimberley is optimal, the Commission places emphasis
on evidence based strategic planning and project delivery.
In 2014-2015 consistent with Government policy, the Commission focussed on
completing “2036 and Beyond: A Blueprint for the Kimberley” which is both evidenced
based and sets aspirational targets for regional development in the Kimberley. The
Commission has now commenced a review of its Strategic Plan 2013-2018 to ensure its
alignment with the Blueprint and further refocus the Commission’s operational effort.
Importantly, the Strategic Plan describes the Board’s:
 Corporate Intent;
 Vision for the region; and
 Major Strategies identified to address regional growth, diversity and regional
investment and contribute to Service 1 and 2 implementation.
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Corporate Intent
The Commission’s Corporate Intent comprises its strong and unified Vision, Mission and
Strategy:

Kimberley Development Commission Vision
The Kimberley aspires to a long-term future transformed into one of the world’s most
successful and sustainable regions. The hallmarks of the success will be:
People – a well-housed, highly educated and healthy people enjoying high amenity in
sustainable communities.
Place – a place with outstanding infrastructure, services and governance set within a
well-conserved and iconic natural environment.
Prosperity – shared prosperity arising from the success of the region’s main drivers of
economic opportunity; Agriculture, Rangeland Industries, Tourism, Minerals & energy.

Kimberley Development Commission Mission
Understanding the Region’s development needs - connecting, influencing and
coordinating to deliver strategic regional development outcomes.

Kimberley Development Commission Strategy
The Commission has identified six primary Strategic Directions targeting key regional
development objectives in the Kimberley. A seventh Strategic Direction focuses on
building the organisational capability of the Kimberley Development Commission. This
enhanced organisational capability will be structured to support the disciplined
Changes
to Outcome
Management
Framework
operating model
outlined inBased
its Mission
and Overarching
strategies:
 Regional Planning and Development Priorities
The Commission’s
Outcome
Management Framework has not changed in
 Enabling Industry
and Based
Infrastructure
2014/2015.
 People Capacity & Capability Building
 Aboriginal Participation
 Housing for Regional Development
 Growth Centres
 Organisational Capability
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Changes to Outcome Based Management Framework
The Commission’s Outcome Based Management Framework has not changed in
2014/2015.

Shared Responsibilities with Other Agencies
In accordance with the Regional Development Commissions Act 1993 Part 2 Division 2
section 23 clause (1) (e) the Commission has responsibilities: “to ensure that the
general standard of government services and access to those services in the region is
comparable to that which applies in the metropolitan area”.
Examples of the Commission’s shared responsibilities with Agencies, in 2014/2015 to
each Agency’s benefit, include:
 Continuing to consult with and incorporate comment from wide ranging
stakeholder Agencies in the completion of the “2036 and Beyond: A Regional
Blueprint for the Kimberley”, that will guide regional development including
future Royalties for Regions and other investment in the region;
 working with the Department of Regional Development and other Regional
Development Commissions (RDCs), through the Commission’s Chief
Executive’s membership as one of two RDC CEOs on the Regional
Development Reform Governance Group, to enhance regional development
outcomes across the State through greater collaboration;
 collaborating with Traditional Owner organisations, the Department of Housing
and private sector Architectural and Building organisations to design and
implement a range of new and alternate Aboriginal housing models to yield an
initial 105 houses for Aboriginal people in employment; and
 partnering LandCorp and the Shire of Broome in the preparatory work required,
including Economic and Tourism Strategies, to position Broome as a priority for
Growth Centre funding.
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2 Agency Performance
This section summarises the Commission’s major achievements and highlights in
2014/2015 against its Resource Agreement, Budget Statements, the seven strategic
areas identified in its Corporate Intent and the five Government Goals.

Report on Operations
A major focus for the Commission this year has been the completion of “2036 and
Beyond: A Regional Blueprint for the Kimberley”. In order to transition swiftly and
productively into realising Blueprint outcomes, the Commission has focussed on
strategically prioritising projects according to their relevance to the Blueprint targets and
building its internal capacity.
Simultaneously, the Commission has:
 made significant progress in facilitating new alternative Aboriginal housing
models that incentivise employment of Aboriginal people and offer enhanced
independence and socio-economic outcomes for participant families;
 made a substantial contribution to the Statewide regional development portfolio
and emerging changes in regional services provision further to the transition from
Commonwealth to State funding arrangements;
 successfully supported project development and funding scheme administration
in the fourth round of the Kimberley Regional Grants Scheme and the inaugural
round of the Kimberley Community Chest Fund.
Table A (page 25) provides the Commission’s project areas matched against its two
Service Areas identified in its Resource Agreement 2014/2015 and the five Government
Goals. Ticks denote project area contributions towards each Government Goal.
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Achievement Area

Service Areas 1 & 2
Regional
Development
Policies,
Strategies &
Information

Diversification
of Industries &
Infrastructure

Government Goals Change Order
State Building
– Major
Projects

Financial &
Economic
Responsibility

Results Based
Service
Delivery

Stronger Focus
on the Regions

Social &
Environmental
Responsibility

Kimberley Regional
Investment Blueprint















Royalties for Regions
Program















Regional Planning &
Development Priorities















Enabling Industry and
Infrastructure















People Capacity &
Capability Building















Aboriginal
Participation















Housing for Regional
Development















Growth Centres















Organisational
Capability















Table A - The Commission’s Achievements in 2014/2015 matched against its Service Areas & Government Goals
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Kimberley Regional Investment Blueprint
Consistent with the State Government’s regional development policy the Commission
has, this year, finalised the Kimberley Regional Investment Blueprint (Blueprint). The
Blueprint will shortly be submitted to the Minister of Regional Development for final
approval and is likely to be released in August 2015. The Blueprint has been informed
and enhanced by collaborative work with the Regional Development Council, Regional
Development Commissions, Western Australian Planning Commission and extensive
regional stakeholder consultation.

The Kimberley Regional Investment Blueprint (Blueprint) presents an aspirational and
future focused approach to shaping the Kimberley into one of the world’s most
successful and sustainable regions. The Blueprint presents a strong case for real and
shared prosperity with the forecast economic growth predicted to exceed rates of
employment growth and population growth.
Significantly, the Blueprint proposes that above trend or aspirational rates of growth can
be achieved over a prolonged period of time if precise, disciplined and well planned
‘investments’ are prioritised. Significantly, the Blueprint proposes that above trend or
aspirational rates of growth can be achieved over a prolonged period of time if precise,
disciplined and well planned ‘investments’ are prioritised. The Commission has chosen
a planning horizon of 2036 to allow sufficient time to drive achievement in even the most
challenging areas.
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Four areas of comparative advantage (tourism; agriculture and food; minerals and
energy; and rangelands industries) and four areas where barriers to achievement need
to be overcome (housing and land; education and training; health and well being; and
infrastructure, services and governance) have been identified. Progress across these
areas is focused around six transformational priorities (leadership and development
readiness; Aboriginal advancement; maximizing the use of resources; policy changes to
drive development; Kimberley growth centres and Infrastructure for Driving Growth).
The fundamental concepts that underpin the logic and intent of the Blueprint are that:
 The solutions to our most pressing social challenges are largely to be found in
the development opportunities we enjoy.
 Regional leadership will be central to achieving the potential of our region and
people.
 A clear and purposeful strategy, with broad ownership, will be a key to delivering
the best regional development outcomes.
It is expected that the Kimberley Regional Investment Blueprint will provide strong,
productive and consistent strategic guidance not just for the Commission but also for
State, Commonwealth, non-government and private investors who wish to drive or
participate in the development of the Kimberley.

The Blueprint Vision and Goals
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Regional Modelling Project
During the last year, the Commission has jointly progressed the development of the
Kimberley scenario modelling project with Curtin University and their Canadian based
research partners, as a tool to assist simulate alternative development impacts in the
region and to monitor Blueprint progress.
A demonstration of a small part of the model was recently presented to a wide range of
stakeholders at the CEDA conference in Broome on 29 May 2015 which attracted
enthusiastic feedback from several stakeholders regarding the importance and value of
the model for future regional development. The Commission is currently finalising the
development of the platform and progressively and strategically exposing its operation
to key users.
The Commission and its partners are working to increasing the functionality and
capacity of the model. The project is advancing well and the incorporation of additional
data and indicators has increased its functionality to run a wide range of simulations and
answer a wide range of questions. For example, the model can provide information on
which areas are most valuable for agricultural production and should potentially be
developed or protected for agriculture.
Sourcing and inputting additional data into the model however, is costly due to sourcing
difficulties, filtering of data, GIS mapping overlays and time. The Department of
Regional Development has contributed funding to further advance this Kimberley model.
To build capacity in the local use of model, two of the Commission’s staff have
undergone training with the Canadian Research partner.
A strategy is being developed to roll the model out to key decision makers, initially in the
State Government, who make decisions critical to the Kimberley region without this
capability.
This linkage between investment and impact with the ability to project into the future
across such a wide range of criteria has not previously been progressed in Australia.
The modelling capacity that is being built is potentially the ‘game changer’ that was
initially envisaged.
The Commission and its partners are now focussing on finalising functionality of the
model, training key staff in its practical usage across a wide range if disciplines relevant
to regional development and showcasing its usage to key decision makers such that its
power to underpin better regional development decisions is clearly understood.
To achieve these objectives, Kimberley Development Commission staff have been
trialling its application in a small range of test scenarios.
The Commission’s Board is proactively engaged in decision making around the
development of the model, its capabilities and potential use. Examples considered
include:
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How the model could be used to identify those Kimberley communities that may
be less viable and which the Government could potentially work with to improve
their viability.
How the model can simulate future scenarios and the impact these have on
different aspects of the Kimberley, for instance which infrastructure is at risk of
being impacted by sea level rises.
The relationships between different variables and the role of regional planning to
ensure that progress is sustainable. For example, the impact that tourism has on
the road network in the Kimberley.
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Royalties for Regions Program
The Royalties for Regions program established in 2008, is a Western Australian
Government legislated initiative under the Royalties for Regions Act 2009 that re-invests
25% (or up to a maximum of $1 billion per annum) of the royalties collected from
Western Australian mining and resource operations into the regional and remote areas
of the State.
Royalties for Regions focuses on delivering six regional objectives:
 Building capacity in regional communities;
 Retaining benefits in regional communities;
 Improving services to regional communities;
 Attaining sustainability;
 Expanding opportunity; and
 Growing prosperity.
In 2014/2015 the Commission facilitated and administered two Royalties for Regions
regional grants schemes:
 the fourth round of the Kimberley Regional Grants Scheme (KRGS); and
 the inaugural round of the Kimberley Community Chest Fund (KCCF).
Across the two rounds there were 33 successful applicants who were awarded a total of
$1,351,927 funding. These projects are all aligned with one or more of the six regional
objectives and will contribute towards enhancing regional development in the Kimberley.

Kimberley Regional Grants Scheme
The Kimberley Regional Grant Scheme with total funds of $985,537 offered grants of
$20,001 to $300,000 closed on 11 December 2014. Thirty-four applications were
received requesting over $5 million in project funding. All applications were assessed by
the Commission’s Board and the recommendations provided to the Minister for approval
and endorsement by Cabinet.
Earlier rounds were in 2008/2009, 2009/2010 and 2010/2011.
KRGS has significantly increased the amount of funding available to the Commission to
support regional projects that align with the strategic priorities of the Commission in
“2036 and Beyond: A Regional Blueprint for the Kimberley”.
There were 12 successful applicants who, collectively, received a total of $985,537 of
funding. The Commission works to leverage these funds with project contributions from
other public and private sector stakeholders to maximise the level of resources available
to projects. A full list of the successful applicants can be viewed in the table below.
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The following projects were allocated funding through the KRGS 2014/2015 round:

Proponent
Gurama Yani U Inc (Fitzroy
Valley Men's Shed)
Yarliyil Art Centre
The Charitable Foundation
for Books in Homes Australia
Warmun Art Aboriginal
Corporation
Wunan Foundation
Shire of Derby West
Kimberley
Derby District High School
Winun Ngari Aboriginal
Corporation
East Kimberley Marketing
Group
Kununurra Chamber of
Commerce & Industry Inc
Ewin Early Learning Centre
Inc
Stalker
Theatre
T/A
Marrugeku Inc

Project Title

Grant
Amount

Development of Fitzroy Valley Men's Shed
Halls Creek Cultural Facility Infrastructure
Project

$72,350
$200,000

Books in Kimberley Homes

$100,245

Digital Training Program
East Kimberley Aboriginal Corporation
Governance Support Service

$123,300

Derby Heritage Trail
Follow the Dream: Partnerships for
Success

$149,642

$50,000

$20,000

Derby Men's Shed
$150,000
Business Case for Direct Flights from the
East Coast to Kununurra
$60,000
Kununurra Chamber of Commerce &
Industry Stepping Up
$20,000
Kununurra Early Childhood Education and
Care Strategy
$20,000
Marreguku's Kimberley tour and workshop
program
$20,000

Examples of the projects funded through the KRGS 2014/2015 round include:
Development of Fitzroy Valley Men's Shed
Gurama Yani U Inc. received funding of $72,350 for the purchase of a Boom Lift
elevated work platform for demolition and minor building works in the Fitzroy
Valley to enhance skills development and replace the need to hire equipment.
Halls Creek Cultural Facility Infrastructure Project
The Yarliyil Art Centre has funding of $200,000 towards the construction of a 7
metre driveway and access path, parking bays (including disabled parking),
caravan and camper parking with 10 metre driveway, loading bay, firepit and
landscaping to complete the new Royalties for Regions funded Halls Creek Art,
Craft and Cultural Centre; a major socio-economic initiative for Halls Creek.
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Digital Training Program
Warmun Art Aboriginal Corporation has funding of $123,300 to build digital media
capacity in each of the four main Kimberley Art Centres: Waringarri, Warmun,
Mangkaja, and Mowanjum. The program will increase their capacity in: art, cultural
archives and options for supporting other disciplines, such as health and
education.
Derby Heritage Trail
The Shire of Derby received funding of $149,642 for the development of a 15
kilometre interpretive heritage trail and 'pedestrian safe' area to link the Derby
township to the wharf. This will increase tourism activity in Derby and improve
access, amenity and safety around the wharf/industrial area.
Kununurra Early Childhood Education and Care Strategy
Ewin Early Learning Centre Inc. has funding of $20,000 to enhance child care in
Kununurra by engaging a consultant to prepare a "Kununurra Early Childhood
Education and Care Development Strategy" to inform and prioritise future projects,
and attract further investment.
Kimberley Community Chest Fund
The inaugural Royalties for Regions funded Kimberley Community Chest Fund with total
funding of $370,000 was for grants of up to and including $20,000 and was open for
rolling applications until 17 April 2015. This KCCF round is the first small grants round to
be rolled out by the Commission.
The 2014/2015 KCCF round attracted 33 applications seeking over $600,000 in project
funding. There were 21 successful projects that received $366,400 of grant allocations.
A full list of the successful applicants can be viewed in the table below.
Proponent

Lake Kununurra Golf Club
Halls Creek Healing
Taskforce Aboriginal Corp
East Kimberley Marketing
Group Inc



Project Title



Lake Kununurra Golf Club Kitchen
upgrade





Theatre Kimberley Inc


Public Trustee
Gelganyem Ltd
Nyamba Buru Yawuru Ltd
Mirima Council





Collective Social Impact Initiative
Market Potential Analysis for Direct
Flights East Coast to Kununurra
Act Belong Commit Sandfly Circus
Artist in residence program
Improving Will Making & Financial
Administration Understanding and
Access among Regional Western
Australians
Barramundi Dreaming Festival
Yawuru Storylines
Miriwoong Knowledge Cycle
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Grant
Amount
$20,000
$20,000
$20,000
$20,000

$20,000
$20,000
$18,786
$15,900

Proponent

Project Title

Netball WA Inc
Ngnowar-Aerwah Aboriginal
Corporation
Broome Historical Society
Halls Creek Community
Garden Incorporated
Puranyangu-Rangka Kerrem
(Aboriginal Radio) Aboriginal
Corporation

NW NAIDOC Netball Carnival

Grant
Amount
$10,000

Corporate Governance Technical Support
Locating lost WWII and other aircraft

$9,599
$15,717

Halls Creek Community Garden

$15,000

PRK Music Studio Community Development
Facility infrastructure upgrades for social and
economic development

$20,000

BYFH Kitchen and canteen upgrade

$20,000

Kimberley Writers Festival

$15,000

Kimberley Economic Forum
View to Asia

$10,000
$20,000

Designing Our Future
Da Vinci Machines Exhibition - Broome
Kira Kiro - Kalumburu Art Centre building

$19,866
$20,000
$20,000

Shire of Halls Creek
Broome Youth & Families
Hub
Shire of Wyndham East
Kimberley
Broome Chamber of
Commerce & Industry
Shinju Matsuri Inc
Marninwarntikura Fitzroy
Women's Resource Centre
Shire of Broome
Waringarri Aboriginal Arts

$16,532

Examples of the projects funded through the KCCF 2014/2015 round include:
Miriwoong Knowledge Cycle
The Mirima Council has funding of $19,500 to undertake 30 audio recordings with
a Miriwoong language speaker, 2 linguistic-cultural research field trips, 1-2
language development workshops as well as develop a language learning
resource. The project will preserve, develop and teach the Miriwoong language to
younger generations to ensure culture and stories can be passed on. The project
will strengthen Miriwoong culture and provide participants with greater confidence
to participate in society and the mainstream economy.
Facility infrastructure upgrades for social and economic development
The Shire of Halls Creek has funding of $16,532 to place nine sets of Zebra Rocks
at a variety of popular locations around the town, each set is designed to be used
as three seats, or two seats and a picnic table. These sets will be critical in
providing enhanced amenities and greater experience for locals and tourists.
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Designing Our Future
The Marninwarntikura Fitzroy Women's Resource Centre received funding of
$19,866 to conduct a professional Designer in Residence program to educate,
train and develop local artists in saleable product design and production to enable
the Aboriginal women of the Fitzroy Valley to capitalise on the high end tourist
market. This forms part of the social enterprise program initiated by
Marninwarntikura Fitzroy Women's Resource Centre in 2013 that aims to
strengthen the skill sets and employment opportunities of local artisans. The
Textile Designer engaged to undertake the program has run a highly successful
two year program in Kununurra with women impacted by significant social issues.
Da Vinci Machines Exhibition – Broome
The Shire of Broome has funding of $20,000 that will assist the Shire to present
the Da Vinci Machines Exhibition in Broome. The exhibition comprises over 60
interactive machines created from original Da Vinci drawings on loan from the
Museum of Leonardo Da Vinci in Florence, Italy. The event will attract visitors to
the town and provide local residents with a rare opportunity to see a unique, world
class exhibit.
Residual Blueprint Funding
The Commission had residual Blueprint funding that was used, accordingly to policy, to
fund two projects that contribute towards achieving the objectives of the Blueprint.
Proponent

Nyamba Buru Yawuru
Tourism North West Inc T/A
Australia's North West

Project Title
Yawuru Jetty to Jetty Heritage Trail
Installation
Broome Brand Positioning Study

Grant
Amount
$107,405
$45,000

Alternative Aboriginal Housing Projects
West Kimberley Transitional Housing Project
The West Kimberley Transitional Housing Program (WKTHP) is a joint initiative
between the Kimberley Development Commission (KDC) and the Department of
Housing to deliver a minimum of 40 houses in Broome and 20 in Derby together
with the provision of participant specific support services.
The $46 million Royalties for Regions funded program provides stable, affordable
housing for Aboriginal people who are employed or in training, and who ensure
their children attend school regularly. Program participants must also commit to
engage with wrap-around support services which assist in setting life management
goals, personal financial management and progressing referrals to community
support networks like health agencies.
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Construction of the houses is currently underway with the first tenants expected to
move into their new homes in the 2015/2016 financial year, with all homes being
complete by 2017.
Yawuru Home Ownership Scheme
The Yawuru Home Ownership Scheme is a pilot shared equity housing project
being delivered in partnership with Nyamba Buru Yawuru (NBY), the Kimberley
Development Commission and the State Government’s mortgage lender Keystart.
With the support of Royalties for Regions funding and land provided by NBY, the
program has made eight new homes available for shared equity purchase by
Aboriginal people of Broome. Participants are low to moderate income earners
purchasing their first homes. They have been selected through a competitive
application process.
This pilot project has enabled NBY to provide an affordable housing product that
has allowed Aboriginal first homeowners who would not have ordinarily been able
to enter the housing market, to purchase their own home. All future proceeds from
the project will be reinvested by NBY into the provision of further affordable
housing projects in Broome.
Kimberley Aboriginal Community Housing Project
This initiative was the first alternative Aboriginal housing model developed and
piloted by the Commission with a State Government allocation of $15 million from
the 2009/2010 Royalties for Regions budget. This model has been implemented in
partnership with Bunuba Inc. in Fitzroy Crossing, Miriuwung Gajerrong (MG)
Corporation in Kununurra and initially the Shire of Halls Creek subsequently
replaced by the Department of Housing in Halls Creek.
The three project components are yielding thirty-seven houses; the final few of
which will be completed in September, for Aboriginal people in employment and
thus leverage other Aboriginal socio-economic benefits and assist reduce welfare
dependency.
With an initial grant of $5 million each the three host organisations committed land
for the housing. MG Corp and the Shire of Halls Creek received further Royalties
for Regions funding of $2,280,000 and $2,250,000 through the Regional
Development Council’s Action Agenda funding scheme to extend the housing
project in both towns.
To demonstrate the success of the project the fifteen project houses in Halls Creek
which are the inaugural houses of the Halls Creek Transitional Housing Program,
were oversubscribed by suitable applicants at the first “sign up” meeting and the
MG Corp component reached 100% Aboriginal employment during the early
stages of the extension build of four houses.
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Other Achievements
Examples of the Commission’s other achievements in 2014/2015 are provided under its
seven Strategic Directions.

Regional Planning & Development Priorities
The development of “2036 and Beyond: A Regional Blueprint for the Kimberley” has
been a major achievement for the Commission that has attracted positive and
constructive feedback from a range of regional stakeholders, especially in regards to the
inclusion of targets and key performance indicators.
Of note is that this is the first comprehensive document that has been prepared to
inform regional development in the Kimberley. The Blueprint is a dynamic, evidenced
based tool that is described in detail on page 26 and referred to throughout this Annual
Report.
The Blueprint and the Regional Modelling that the Commission has engaged in with
Curtin University and Canadian partners and which is detailed on page 28 have the
potential to underpin socio-economic transformation in the Kimberley if adopted by
regional stakeholders to the extent anticipated.
Consistent with the Blueprint the Commission is working with stakeholders to plan and
progress a diverse range of major projects including the West Kimberley Transitional
Housing Project, development of Broome as a Growth Centre, the redevelopment of
Broome’s Chinatown. Also, having provided comment, last year, via the State to the
Commonwealth on the Commonwealth Government’s Development of Northern
Australia initiative, the Commission has considered the recently released
Commonwealth White Paper against the Blueprint. The White Paper was found to be
largely consistent with the Blueprint apart from proposals to increase migration to
Northern Australia which may impact on regional strategies to increase Aboriginal
employment.

Enabling Industry and Infrastructure
To facilitate further irrigated agricultural development in the Kimberley and also in the
Northern Territory adjacent to the West Australian border, the Commission has provided
input to:
 the Department of Agriculture’s Seizing the Opportunity Agriculture – Water for
Food Initiative which proposes new irrigated agricultural land in the West and
East Kimberley; respectively La Grange, Knowsley Plains area and Cockatoo
Sands;
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cross-border planning and preparation for native title negotiations consistent with
a Memorandum of Understanding signed between the Western Australian and
Northern Territory Governments to collaborate on the expansion of irrigated
agricultural land in the Northern Territory.

To attract major investment in the resources sector, the Commission has worked with
resource companies to provide a regional perspective, assist clarify and provide
referrals for approval processes and promote the benefits of localisation and Aboriginal
employment.
Similarly, the Commission has worked to enhance tourism in the Kimberley, through
collaboration with the Department of Parks and Wildlife and Tourism WA on
implementation of the Kimberley Science and Conservation Strategy and by providing
financial support towards East Kimberley Marketing Group’s initiative to attract direct
regular passenger transport flights from the Eastern States to Kununurra.

People Capacity and Capability Building
The young, cross-cultural Kimberley Community has untapped potential that could be
realised through enhanced leadership and governance. Regional progress in this area
is challenged by low Aboriginal educational outcomes and high turnover of staff in
government and non government organisations.
Consistent with the Blueprint to address these issues, the Commission has continued to
maintain a high standard of governance and leadership within its Board and Staff and
work at a strategic level to enhance regional educational and leadership outcomes. This
work has included:
 working to incentivise Aboriginal employment and improve School attendance
through facilitation of alternative Aboriginal housing programs;
 providing financial grants, through the Kimberley Regional Grants Scheme and
Kimberley Community Chest funds, to a number of initiatives that propose to
build capacity in community organisations and individuals including:
o Wunan’s East Kimberley Aboriginal Corporation Governance Support
Service;
o Winun Ngari Aboriginal Corporation’s construction of a Derby Men’s Shed;
and
o Marninwarntikura Fitzroy Women's Resource Centre – Designing Our
Future text skills development and employment initiative;
 facilitating and supporting initiatives that enhance the liveability of the Kimberley
and reduce regional staff turnover;
 facilitating and supporting initiatives that strengthen Aboriginal leadership;
 successfully supporting Warmun Aboriginal Corporation enhance its governance
and corporate management.
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Aboriginal Participation
As the Kimberley region embraces the future as a maturing, cross-cultural regional
community, Aboriginal participation in regional decision making, education and the
mainstream economy is both increasingly encouraged and increasing. The Commission
is committed to facilitating this trend by assisting Aboriginal people both protect their
culture and participate effectively in the mainstream economy to achieve their
aspirations.
Many of the initiatives in which the Commission is engaged are detailed elsewhere in
this report. Additional strategic examples include:
 assisting Aboriginal Leaders in the East Kimberley work collaboratively to
develop a partnership approach consistent with the national Empowered
Communities Initiative;
 working with the Department of Regional Development in the pre and early
establishment phases of the Regional Services Reform Unit that will consult
extensively with Aboriginal Leaders on service delivery further to the transition
from Commonwealth to State funding arrangements with effect 1 July 2015.

Housing for Regional Development
The Commission’s evidence based Regional Housing Strategy is emerging as one of
monitoring the current situation, identifying housing shortages by type and number and
collaborating with key stakeholders including the Department of Housing, to apply
innovative solutions to adequately and appropriately house the growing regional
community. This has included:
 progressing a number of Royalties for Regions funded alternative Aboriginal
Housing projects, detailed in pages 34 to 35, with a view to shifting the emphasis
from social housing to potentially several tiers of Transitional Housing which
incentivise school attendance, employment, financial management and
independence;
 facilitating non Government organisation access to housing for staff; and
 enhancing regional investment and prosperity that underpins the private housing
market.

Growth Centres
Further to the Commission’s partnership work, with the Shire of Broome and LandCorp,
to position Broome for early State Government Regional Centres Development Plan
(RCDP) Phase 2 funding, Broome has been prioritised as one of four towns to receive
RCDP funding to develop a plan to guide economic growth.
Preparatory work undertaken by the partnership through a Memorandum of
Understanding has included development of a Broome Tourism Strategy; development
of an Economic Development Strategy; and the Commission providing financial
assistance to enable the Shire of Broome to complete its Chinatown redevelopment
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Business Case which is now being reviewed by the Department of Regional
Development.
The Commission has also commenced early work with the Shire of Wyndham East
Kimberley to position Kununurra for the next round of RCDP funding.

Organisational Capability
Since the “Duncan Review” of Regional Development Commissions in 2010 the
Commission has focussed on strengthening its capability to effectively engage with
regional stakeholders and identify and develop major initiatives to progress
implementation of the Blueprint.
To achieve this, the Commission is assisting existing staff develop their skills to assume
new, diverse and higher level responsibilities and engaging staff with specialist skills
through shared arrangements with other organisations.
Concurrently, the Commission is working to facilitate implementation of state wide
regional development strategies including the Regional Development Portfolio
Operating Arrangements and the Regional Services Reform Agenda.
Throughout this period of positive change, the Commission has worked to ensure
compliance with legislation and government policy and retain its reputation for good
governance and a high level of integrity.
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Actual Results against Budget Targets
Financial Targets
2014/15
Target $000

2014/15
Actual $000

Total Cost of Services (expense limit)
(sourced from Statement of Comprehensive
Income)

3,309

3,740

431

Net Cost of Services
(sourced from Statement of Comprehensive
Income)

3,287

3,672

385

737

2,148

1,411

(161)

222

383

12

8

-4

Total Equity
(sourced from Statement of Financial Position)
Net increase / (decrease) in cash held
Approved full time equivalent (FTE) staff level

Variation

The variation of $431k between target and actual Total Cost of Services is attributed to
Royalties for Regions grant funding programs totalling $1.9m that were announced after
the 2014-15 Budget had been handed down. Funding of $556k was made available in
2014-15 for the Kimberley Regional Grants Scheme, $370k for the Kimberley
Community Chest Fund, $231k for Warmun Community Inc. and $750k for the Yawuru
Home Ownership Scheme that was announced in late June 2014. Grant expense
against this funding totalled $1.4m.
The variation of $385k between target and actual in the Net Cost of Services is primarily
attributed to grant income of $1.9m and expense of $1.4m as detailed above.
The variation of $1,411 between target and actual in Total Equity is linked with grant
revenue and expense as detailed above together with a reduction of $860k in Employee
Benefits due to an anticipated Budget of 12 FTE and an actual of 8 FTE. The vacant
positions are to be filled in 2015/2016.
The variation of $383k in Net increase/(decrease) in cash held is primarily due to
Royalties for Regions programs as detailed above.
These matters are further explained in the notes to the Financial Statements.
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3 Significant Issues Impacting the Commission
Current and Emerging Issues and Trends
Significant issues impacting on the Commission in 2014/2015 and highlighted in the
State Budget for that year included:
 Regional Planning and Development Priorities – the Commission is nearing
completion of “2036 and Beyond: A Blueprint for the Kimberley” which, subject to
final Ministerial approval, will become a pivotal guide for regional development in
the Kimberley well into the future. It provides an evidence based, transformational
approach to inform strategic planning, project development and regional
investment.
 Enabling Industry and Infrastructure – timely and strategic investment in
regional infrastructure is required to realise the potential of the region’s main
industries; agriculture, resources and tourism and facilitate business and industry
diversification for the benefit of the region and the State.
 People and Capacity Building – the Kimberley cross-cultural population has a
median age of 30 compared to that of the State of 34. However, it is under skilled
and requires enhanced inputs and outcomes in education and employment to
reach its potential and facilitate the subsequent economic development of the
region.
 Aboriginal Participation - Aboriginal people comprise 44% of the Kimberley
population. Their quality of life and participation in the mainstream economy is
challenged by a wide range of socio-economic issues. Long term strategies that
involve Aboriginal leadership and responsibility and replace welfare dependency
with Aboriginal achievement are required.


Housing for Regional Development – the region’s young, cross-cultural
population requires an adequate stock of affordable sustainable housing to attract
and retain skilled people in the region and provide regional people with an
incentive to remain employed and in the mainstream economy.

 Growth Centres – long term and flexible investment is required to realise the
potential of the Kimberley and its growth centres and position the entire region as
a cornerstone of Overseas trade. The Kimberley has two centres. Both Broome
and Kununurra are well positioned to facilitate broader Kimberley regional growth
from investment.
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Economic and Social Trends
Rich in both natural and cultural assets, the Kimberley enjoys a broad-based and
diverse economy relative to other regions in Western Australia. Some of the key
economic and social trends affecting the Kimberley are:
 In 2014 there were 39,099 people residing in the Kimberley spread over 420,000
square kilometres. The region’s population dispersal and remoteness is a
defining feature that influences culture, industry and people with a population
density of less than 0.1 people per square kilometre.


The Blueprint supports a regional population growth rate of 3.69% per year. If
this growth could be sustained the region would become home to more than
93,000 people by 2036.



Aboriginal people in the Kimberley comprise 44% of the total population and are
a largely unrecognised for their capabilities. Kimberley Aboriginal people, on
average, live in households that are almost twice as large, they have a quarter of
the income, are one third as likely to own their own home, are forty times more
likely to be incarcerated and will die at least ten years younger than nonAboriginal people.



A business as usual approach to addressing Aboriginal disadvantage is
unacceptable. The Blueprint discusses objectives of Aboriginal advancement
through greater levels of participation and attainment in education, training and
employment.



The Kimberley’s Gross Regional Product reached $3.1 billion in 2012-13 and
was primarily made up by the mining, construction and human services
industries.



The Blueprint identifies four industries in which the Kimberley has a comparative
advantage. These are the agricultural and food, rangeland, tourism and minerals
and energy industries. These industries will be the main drivers for future
economic growth and employment opportunities.



The Blueprint also identified four challenges to economic and social
advancements in the Kimberley. These challenges are low levels of affordable
and accessible housing and land, educational attainment, health and wellbeing
and infrastructure and services and governance.



The Commission pursued research to identify the key megatrends of global
influence that lie external to the region but will have an impact on the region.
These megatrends will be a major influence upon the Kimberley’s development
future. The megatrends identified were:
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o The Asian Century: The economic growth of Asia is expected to be a
defining feature of the 21st century. Asia will be the world’s largest
consumer of goods and services. Australia is well positioned to take full
advantage of this opportunity particular through exportation of food and
fibre, minerals, oils and gas.
o Urbanisation: There has been an overwhelming trend around the world of
people moving from rural to urban areas. This is likely to affect the
Kimberley in two ways; people will be drawn to living in the large centres
of Broome and Kununurra but people may also be drawn to living in the
larger cities of Perth or Darwin. It is important for the Kimberley to
strengthen the attractiveness of its urban centres as it pursues
development.
o The Natural Environment: The environment is a key asset in the Kimberley
for both intrinsic value as well as economic, cultural and social
opportunities. Changes in climate can threaten the current environment.
o Increased emphasis on service and experience: As more of the World’s
basic needs are being met, people have increasing amounts of disposable
income and time to invest at their own discretion. As such, people are able
to spend more money on wants rather than needs. This is an opportunity
which the Kimberley should take advantage of through offering worldclass, high-quality tourism.
o Ageing Population: This is not as significant an issue as for other regions,
given that the Kimberley has a median age six years younger than the
West Australian average. However, due to the significant health issues of
younger Aboriginal people and the increasing number of aging non
Aboriginal people remaining or wishing to remain in the Kimberley, the
demand for ageing services is rising.
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Changes in Written Law
There have been no changes to written law in 2014/2015 that impact significantly on the
Commission.

Likely Developments and Forecast Results of Operations
2014/2015 closed with several major initiatives taking shape and aligning, in which the
Commission is substantially involved and that are anticipated to influence the Kimberley
region’s development for years to come:
 implementation of “2036 and Beyond; A Regional Blueprint for the Kimberley” –
the first comprehensive document of its kind in the region;
 the early conceptualisation of broad scale regional projects consistent with the
Blueprint that have the potential to accelerate regional development in the
Kimberley;
 the State Government Regional Services Reforms with an immediate emphasis
on Remote Aboriginal Community service delivery that will initially be progressed
in the Kimberley and Pilbara. With 160 remote Aboriginal Communities, the
Kimberley has more than any other region in Western Australia and will be
significantly impact by the reforms;
 development of regional modelling through a partnership approach with Curtin
University and a Canadian company that will be piloted in the Kimberley; and
 enhanced Regional Development portfolio operating arrangements that will build
capacity across the State and in which the Commission is contributing to
leadership.
These initiatives are interrelated and are expected to have a profound impact on the
Commission’s operations in 2015/2016 and demand on its resources as it proactively
collaborates with regional stakeholders to potentially transform the Kimberley’s socioeconomic outcomes.
The Commission proposes to continue building capacity and maximising its small
establishment, through professional development of existing staff and several
collaborative arrangements with other agencies.
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4 Disclosures and Legal Compliance
Opinion of the Auditor General
(Financial Statements and Key Performance Indicators)
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KIMBERLEY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
For the year ended 30 June 2015
Note

2015
$

2014
$

7
8
9,20
10
11
12

1,242,247
480,622
32,283
271,832
1,425,845
287,193
3,740,022

1,336,011
552,874
41,783
261,212
3,300,212
348,576
5,840,668

13
14

67,648
67,648

2,046
31,843
33,889

67,648

33,889

NET COST OF SERVICES

3,672,374

5,806,779

INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
15
Service appropriation (inc SAT Act 1975)
Resources Received Free of Charge
Royalties for Regions – operational funding
Royalties for Regions Fund – grant & other funding
Total income from State Government

258,000
17,015
1,966,000
1,491,157
3,732,172

253,000
15,508
2,004,000
3,822,614
6,095,122

59,798

288,343

-

-

59,798

288,343

COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Administration expenses
Total cost of services
Income
Revenue
Interest Revenue
Other revenue
Total revenue
Total income other than income
from State Government

(DEFICIT)/SURPLUS FOR THE PERIOD
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
See also note 35 “Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service”.

The Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other current assets
Total current assets
Non-current assets
Amounts receivable for services
Property, plant and equipment
Total non-current assets

Note

2015
$

2014
$

25
16,25
17
19

938,182
1,706,487
146,886
7,882
2,799,437

859,203
1,563,721
17,383
6,174
2,446,481

18
20

39,000
60,243
99,243

39,000
92,526
131,526

2,898,680

2,578,007

22
23

290,530
398,903
689,433

65,087
386,436
451,523

23

60,975
60,975

38,010
38,010

750,408

489,533

2,148,272

2,088,474

145,000
2,003,272

145,000
1,943,474

2,148,272

2,088,474

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions
Total non-current liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS
EQUITY
Contributed equity
Accumulated surplus / (deficit)

24

TOTAL EQUITY

The Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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Note
Balance at 1 July 2013

Contributed
Accumulated
equity surplus/(deficit)
$
$
145,000
1,655,131

Total comprehensive
income for the year

Total Equity
$
1,800,131

288,343

288,343

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Balance at 30 June 2014

145,000

1,943,474

2,088,474

Balance at 1 July 2014

145,000

1,943,474

2,088,474

59,798

59,798

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

145,000

2,003,272

2,148,272

Transactions with owners
in their capacity as
owners:
Capital appropriations
Other contributions
owners

by

Distribution by owners

Total comprehensive
income for the year
Transactions with owners
in their capacity as
owners:
Capital appropriations
Other contributions
owners

by

Distribution by owners
Balance at 30 June 2015

24

The Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying
notes.
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Note
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation
Royalties for Regions – operational funding
Royalties for Regions – grant & other funding
Net cash provided by State Government
Utilised as follows:
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits
Supplies and services
Accommodation
Grants and subsidies
GST payments on purchases
Administration expenses
Receipts
Interest received
GST receipts on sales
GST receipts from taxation authority
Other receipts
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities

25

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Purchase of non-current physical assets
Receipts
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets
Net cash (used in) investing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Payments

2015
$
258,000
1,966,000
1,491,157
3,715,157

2014
$
253,000
2,004,000
3,822,614
6,079,614

(1,165,159)
(427,537)
(287,946)
(1,293,177)
(176,354)
(283,986)

(1,353,199)
(569,225)
(246,715)
(5,510,312)
(543,603)
(363,499)

24,662
44,589
71,496

23,530
225,939
316,438
29,697

(3,493,412)

(7,990,949)

-

-

-

-

-

-

221,745
2,422,924

(1,911,332)
4,334,256

2,644,669

2,422,924

Net cash provided by/(used in) financing activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF PERIOD
25

The Statement of Cash Flow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Note 1. Australian Accounting Standards
General
The Commission’s financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2015 have been prepared
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. The term ‘Australian Accounting
Standards’ includes Standards and Interpretations issued by the Australian Accounting
Standard Board (AASB).
The Commission has adopted any applicable, new and revised Australian Accounting
Standards from their operative dates.
Early adoption of standards
The Commission cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically
permitted by TI 1101 ‘Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other
Pronouncements’. Partial exemption permitting early adoption of AASB 2015-7 Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards – Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public Sector
Entities has been granted. Aside from AASB 2015-7 there has been no early adoption of any
other Australian Accounting Standards that have been issued or amended (but not operative)
by the Commission for the annual reporting period ended 30 June 2015.
Note 2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) General Statement
The Commission is a not-for-profit entity that prepares general purpose financial statements in
accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards, the Framework, Statements of
Accounting Concepts and other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board as applied by the Treasurer’s Instructions. Several of these are modified by
the Treasurer’s Instructions to vary application, disclosure, format and wording.
The Financial Management Act and the Treasurer’s instructions are legislative provisions
governing the preparation of financial statements and take precedence over the Accounting
Standards, the Framework, Statements of Accounting Concepts and other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board.
Where modification is required and has a material or significant financial effect upon the
reported results, details of that modification and the resulting financial effect are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.
(b) Basis of Preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the
historical cost convention, except for land, buildings and infrastructure which have been
measured at fair value.
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial statements have been
consistently applied throughout all periods presented unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and all values are rounded to the
nearest dollar.
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Note 3 ‘Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies’ discloses
judgements that have been made in the process of applying the Commission’s accounting
policies resulting in the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements.
Note 5 ‘Key sources of estimation uncertainty’ discloses key assumptions made concerning the
future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
(c) Reporting Entity
The reporting entity is the Kimberley Development Commission.
(d) Contributed Equity
AASB Interpretation 1038 ‘Contributions by Owners Made to Wholly-Owned Public Sector
Entities’ requires transfers in the nature of equity contributions, other than as a result of a
restructure of administrative arrangements, to be designated by the Government (the owner)
as contributions by owners (at the time of, or prior to transfer) before such transfers can be
recognised as equity contributions. Capital appropriations have been designated as
contributions by owners by Treasurer’s Instruction TI 955 Contributions by Owners made to
Wholly Owned Public Sector Entities and have been credited directly to Contributed Equity.
The transfer of net assets to/from other agencies, other than as a result of a restructure of
administrative arrangements, are designated as contributions by owners where the transfers
are non-discretionary and non-reciprocal.
(e) Income
Revenue recognition
Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.
Revenue is recognised for the major business activities as follows:
Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised from the sale of goods and disposal of other assets when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership control transfer to the purchaser and can be
measured reliably.
Provision of services
Revenue is recognised by reference to the stage of completion of the transaction.
Interest
Revenue is recognised as the interest accrues.
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Service Appropriations
Service Appropriations are recognised as revenues at fair value in the period in which the
Commission gains control of the appropriated funds. The Commission gains control of
appropriated funds at the time those funds are deposited to the bank account or credited to the
‘Amounts receivable for services’ (holding account) held at Treasury.
Grants, donations, gifts and other non-reciprocal contributions
Revenue is recognised at fair value when the Commission obtains control over the assets
comprising the contributions, usually when cash is received.
Other non-reciprocal contributions that are not contributions by owners are recognised at their
fair value. Contributions of services are only recognised when a fair value can be reliably
determined and the services would be purchased if not donated.
Royalties for Regions funds are recognised as revenue at fair value in the period in which the
Commission obtains control over the funds. The Commission obtains control of the funds at the
time the funds are deposited into the Commission’s bank account.
Gains
Realised and unrealised gains are usually recognised on a net basis. These include gains
arising on the disposal of non-current assets and some revaluations of non-current assets.
(f) Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs for qualifying assets are capitalised net of any investment income earned on
the unexpended portion of the borrowings. Other borrowing costs are expensed when incurred.
(g) Property, Plant and Equipment
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets
Items of property, plant and equipment costing $5,000 or more are recognised as assets and
the cost of utilising assets is expensed (depreciated) over their useful lives. Items of property,
plant and equipment costing less than $5,000 are immediately expensed direct to the Statement
of Comprehensive Income (other than where they form part of a group of similar items which are
significant in total).
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Initial recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost.
For items of property, plant and equipment acquired at no cost or for nominal cost, the cost is
their fair value at the date of acquisition.
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition as an asset, the cost model is used for the measurement of all
property, plant and equipment. All items of property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
De-recognition
Upon disposal or de-recognition of an item of property, plant and equipment, any revaluation
surplus relating to that asset is retained in the asset revaluation surplus.
Asset revaluation surplus
The asset revaluation surplus is used to record increments and decrements on the revaluation
of non-current assets as described in note 20 ‘Property, plant and equipment’.
Depreciation
All non-current assets having a limited useful life are systematically depreciated over their
estimated useful lives in a manner that reflects the consumption of their future economic
benefits.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight line method, using rates which are reviewed
annually. Estimated useful lives for each class of depreciable asset are:

(a)

Office equipment
Computer hardware and software (a)

5 years
3 to 5 years

Office fit-out

10-25 years

Software that is integral to the operation of related hardware.

Works of art controlled by the Commission are classified as property, plant and equipment.
These are anticipated to have indefinite useful lives. Their service potential has not, in any
material sense, been consumed during the reporting period and so no depreciation has been
recognised.
(h) Intangible Assets
Capitalisation/Expensing of assets
Acquisitions of intangible assets costing $5,000 or more and internally generated intangible
assets costing $50,000 or more are capitalised. The cost of utilising the assets is expensed
(amortised) over their useful life. Costs incurred below these thresholds are immediately
expensed directly to the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal
cost, the cost is their fair value at the date of acquisition.
The cost model is applied for subsequent measurement requiring the asset to be carried at
cost less any accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses.
Amortisation for intangible assets with finite useful lives is calculated for the period of the
expected benefit (estimated useful life which is reviewed annually) on the straight line basis. All
intangible assets controlled by the Commission have a finite useful life and zero residual value.
The expected useful lives for each class of intangible asset are:
Licences
Research and Development Costs
Software (a)
Web site costs
(a)

up to 10 years
3 to 5 years
3 to 5 years
3 to 5 years

Software that is not integral to the operation of any related hardware.

Licences
Licences have a finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses.
Development costs
Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development costs incurred for an individual project
are carried forward when the future economic benefits can reasonably be regarded as assured
and the total project costs are likely to exceed $50,000. Other development costs are
expensed as incurred.
Computer Software
Software that is an integral part of the related hardware is treated as property, plant and
equipment. Software that is not an integral part of the related hardware is treated as an
intangible asset. Software costing less than $5,000 is expensed in the year of acquisition.
Web site costs
Web site costs are charged as expenses when they are incurred unless they relate to the
acquisition or development of an asset when they may be capitalised and amortised.
Generally, costs in relation to feasibility studies during the planning phase of a web site, and
ongoing costs of maintenance during the operating phase are expensed. Costs incurred in
building or enhancing a web site, to the extent that they represent probable future economic
benefits that can be reliably measured, are capitalised to the extent that they represent
probable future economic benefits.
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(i) Impairment of Assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for any indication of impairment
at the end of each reporting period. Where there is an indication of impairment, the recoverable
amount is estimated. Where the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount, the
asset is considered impaired and is written down to the recoverable amount and an impairment
loss is recognised. Where an asset measured at cost is written down to recoverable amount,
an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. Where a previously revalued asset is written
down to recoverable amount, the loss is recognised as a revaluation decrement in other
comprehensive income. As the Commission is a not-for-profit entity, unless an asset has been
identified as a surplus asset, the recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and depreciated replacement cost.
The risk of impairment is generally limited to circumstances where an asset’s depreciation is
materially understated or where the replacement cost is falling or where there is a significant
change in useful life. Each relevant class of assets is reviewed annually to verify that the
accumulated depreciation/amortisation reflects the level of consumption or expiration of asset’s
future economic benefits and to evaluate any impairment risk from falling replacement costs.
Intangible assets with an indefinite useful life and intangible assets not yet available for use are
tested for impairment at the end of each reporting period irrespective of whether there is any
indication of impairment.
The recoverable amount of assets identified as surplus assets is the higher of fair value less
costs to sell and the present value of future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset.
Surplus assets carried at fair value have no risk of material impairment where fair value is
determined by reference to market-based evidence. Where fair value is determined by
reference to depreciated replacement cost, surplus assets are at risk of impairment and the
recoverable amount is measured. Surplus assets at cost are tested for indications of
impairment at the end of each reporting period.
(j) Non-current assets (or disposal groups) classified as held for sale
The Commission does not have any Non-current assets or disposal groups classified as held
for sale.
(k) Leases
Finance lease rights and obligations are initially recognised, at the commencement of the lease
term, as assets and liabilities equal in amount to the fair value of the leased item or, if lower,
the present value of the minimum lease payments, determined at the inception of the lease.
The assets are disclosed as plant, equipment and vehicles under lease, and are depreciated
over the period during which the Commission is expected to benefit from their use. Minimum
lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and the reduction of the
outstanding lease liability, according to the interest rate implicit in the lease.
The Commission holds operating leases for head office and a number of branch office
buildings and motor vehicles. Lease payments are expensed on a straight line basis over the
lease term as this represents the pattern of benefits derived from the leased properties and
vehicles.
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(l) Financial Instruments
In addition to cash, the Commission has two categories of financial instrument:
 Loans and receivables; and
 Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost.
Financial instruments have been disaggregated into the following classes:


Financial Assets
o Cash and cash equivalents
o Restricted cash and cash equivalents
o Receivables
o Amounts receivable for services



Financial Liabilities
o Payables

Initial recognition and measurement of financial instruments is at fair value which normally
equates to the transaction cost or the face value. Subsequent measurement is at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.
The fair value of short-term receivables and payables is the transaction cost or the face value
because there is no interest rate applicable and subsequent measurement is not required as
the effect of discounting is not material.
(m) Cash and Cash Equivalents
For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent (and restricted
cash and cash equivalent) assets comprise cash on hand and short-term deposits with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily convertible to a known amount of cash and
which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.
(n) Accrued Salaries
Accrued salaries (see note 22 ‘Payables’) represent the amount due to staff but unpaid at the
end of the financial year. Accrued salaries are settled within a fortnight of the financial year
end. The Commission considers the carrying amount of accrued salaries to be equivalent to its
fair value.
(o) Amounts Receivable for Services (holding account)
The Commission receives funding from the State Government partly in cash and partly as an
asset (holding account receivable). The accrued amount appropriated is accessible on the
emergence of the cash funding requirement to cover leave entitlements and asset
replacement.
(p) Inventories
The Commission does not hold any inventories for sale.
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(q) Receivables
Receivables are recognised and carried at original invoice amount less an allowance for any
uncollectible amounts (i.e. impairment). The collectability of receivables is reviewed on an
ongoing basis and any receivables identified as uncollectible are written-off against the
allowable amount. The allowance for uncollectible amounts (doubtful debts) is raised when
there is objective evidence that the Commission will not be able to collect the debts. The
carrying amount is equivalent to fair value as it is due for settlement within 30 days.
(r) Payables
Payables are recognised when the Commission becomes obliged to make future payments as
a result of a purchase of assets or services. The carrying amount is equivalent to fair value, as
they are generally settled within 30 days.
(s) Borrowings
The Commission does not have any borrowings at the end of reporting period.
(t) Amounts due to the Treasurer
The Commission does not have any amounts due to Treasurer at the end of reporting period.
(u) Provisions
Provisions are liabilities of uncertain timing and amount and are recognised where there is a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and when the outflow of
resources embodying economic benefits is probable and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligation. Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period.
Provisions - Employee Benefits
All annual leave and long service leave provisions are in respect of employees services up to
the end of the reporting period.
Annual Leave
Annual leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period and is therefore considered to be “other long term employee benefits”. The
annual leave liability is recognised and measured at the present value of amounts expected to
be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to apply at the
time of settlement.
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and
salary levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions,
as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the end of reporting period on national
government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated
future cash outflows.
The provision for annual leave is classified as a current liability as the Commission does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the
end of the reporting period.
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Long service leave
Long service leave is not expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the
reporting period and is therefore recognised and measured at the present value of amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using the remuneration rate expected to
apply at the time of settlement.
When assessing expected future payments consideration is given to expected future wage and
salary levels including non-salary components such as employer superannuation contributions,
as well as the experience of employee departures and periods of service. The expected future
payments are discounted using market yields at the end of reporting period on national
government bonds with terms to maturity that match, as closely as possible, the estimated
future cash outflows.
Unconditional long service leave provisions are classified as current liabilities as the
Commission does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
12 months after the reporting period. Pre-conditional and Conditional long service leave
provisions are classified as non-current liabilities because the Commission has an
unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability until the employee has completed the
requisite years of service.
Superannuation
The Government Employees Superannuation Board (GESB) administers public sector
superannuation arrangements in Western Australia in accordance with legislative
requirements. Eligibility criteria for membership in particular schemes for public sector
employees varies according to commencement and implementation dates.
Eligible employees may contribute to the Pension Scheme, a defined benefit pension scheme
now closed to new members since 1987, or the Gold State Superannuation Scheme (GSS), a
defined benefit lump sum scheme closed to new members since 1995.
The GSS is a defined benefit scheme for the purposes of employees and whole-of-government
reporting. However, it is a defined contribution plan for Commission purposes because the
concurrent contributions (defined contributions) made by the Commission to GESB
extinguishes the Commission’s obligations to the related superannuation liability.
The Commission has no liabilities under the Pension or the GSS Schemes. The liabilities for
the unfunded Pension Scheme and the unfunded GSS Scheme transfer benefits due to
members who transferred from the Pension Scheme, are assumed by the Treasurer. All other
GSS obligations are funded by concurrent contributions made by the Commission to the
GESB.
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Employees commencing employment prior to 16 April 2007 who were not members of either
the Pension Scheme or the GSS became non-contributory members of the West State
Superannuation Scheme (WSS). Employees commencing employment on or after 16 April
2007 became members of the GESB Super Scheme (GESBS). From 30 March 2012, existing
members of the WSS or GESBS and new employees became able to choose their preferred
superannuation fund. The Authority makes concurrent contributions to GESB or other funds on
behalf of employees in compliance with the Commonwealth Government’s Superannuation
Guarantee (Administration) Act 1992. Contributions to these accumulation schemes extinguish
the Authority’s liability for superannuation charges in respect of employees who are not
members of the Pension Scheme or GSS.
The GESB makes all benefit payments in respect of the Pension and GSS Schemes, and is
recouped from the Treasurer for the employer’s share.
Provisions - Other
Employment On-Costs
Employment on-costs, including workers’ compensation insurance, are not employee benefits
and are recognised separately as liabilities and expenses when the employment to which they
relate has occurred. Employment on-costs are included as part of ‘Other expenses’ and are not
included as part of the Commission’s ‘Employee benefits expense’. The related liability is
included in ‘Employment on-costs provision’.
(v) Superannuation Expense
Superannuation expense is recognised in the profit or loss in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income and comprises employer contributions paid to the GSS (concurrent contributions),
WSS, the GESBS, or other superannuation funds.
(w) Assets and Services Received Free of Charge or for Nominal Cost
Assets or services received free of charge or for nominal cost that the Commission would
otherwise purchase if not donated, are recognised as income at the fair value of the assets
and/or the fair value of those services that can be reliably measured and the Commission
would otherwise pay for. A corresponding expense is recognised for services received.
Receipts of assets are recognised in the Statement of Financial Position.
Assets or services received from other State Government agencies are separately disclosed
under Income from State Government in the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
(x) Jointly controlled operations
The Commission does not have any jointly controlled operations.
(y) Comparative Figures
Comparative figures are, where appropriate, reclassified to be comparable with the figures
presented in the current financial year.
(z) Rounding
Amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar, or in certain
cases, to the nearest thousand dollars.
Page | 62

KIMBERLEY DEVELOPMENT COMMISSION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June 2015
Note 3. Judgements made by management in applying accounting policies
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements about the
application of accounting policies that have a significant effect on the amounts recognised in
the financial statements. The Commission evaluates these judgements regularly.
Operating lease commitments
The Commission has entered into a number of leases for buildings for branch office
accommodation. Some of these leases relate to buildings of a temporary nature and it has
been determined that the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership. Accordingly, these leases have been classified as operating leases.
Note 4. Other accounting policies
The Commission has not adopted or implemented any other accounting policies during the
report year.
Note 5. Key sources of estimation uncertainty
Key estimates and assumptions concerning the future are based on historical experience and
various other factors that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
Long Service Leave
Several estimations and assumptions used in calculating the Commission’s long service leave
provision include expected future salary rates, discount rates, employee retention rates and
expected future payments. Changes in these estimations and assumptions may impact on the
carrying amount of the long service leave provision.
Note 6. Disclosure of changes in accounting policy and estimates
Voluntary changes in Accounting Policy
There is no voluntary change in accounting policy in year 2015.
Initial application of an Australian Accounting Standard
The Commission has applied the following Australian Accounting Standards effective or
adopted for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014 that impacted on the
Commission.
Int21

Levies
This interpretation clarifies the circumstances under which a liability to
pay a government levy imposed should be recognised. There is no
financial impact for the Commission at reporting date.
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AASB 110

Consolidated Financial Statements
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127 Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements and Int 112 Consolidation – Special
Purpose Entities, introducing a number of changes to accounting treatments.
The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the
Commission as it does not impact accounting for related bodies and the
Commission has no interests in other entities.

AASB 11

Joint Arrangements
The Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 131 Interests in
Joint Ventures, introduces new principles for determining the type of joint
arrangements that exists, which are more aligned to the actual rights and
obligations of the parties to the arrangement.
There is no financial impact for the Commission as the new standard
continues to require the recognition of the Commission’s share of assets
and share of liabilities for the unincorporated joint operation.

AASB 12

Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes disclosure
requirements in AASB 127 Consolidated and Separate Financial
Statements, AASB 128 Investments in Associates and AASB 131
Interests in Joint Ventures. There is no financial impact.

AASB 127

Separate Financial Statements
This Standard, issued in August 2011, supersedes AASB 127
Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, removing the
consolidation requirements of the earlier standard whilst retaining
accounting and disclosure requirements for the preparation of separate
financial statements. There is no financial impact.

AASB 128

Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures
This Standard supersedes AASB 128 Investments in Associates, introducing
a number of clarifications for the accounting treatments of changed ownership
interest.
The adoption of the new Standard has no financial impact for the
Commission as it does not hold investments in associates and joint
ventures.
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AASB 1031

Materiality
This Standard supersedes AASB 1031 (February 2010), removing
Australian guidance on materiality not available in IFRSs and refers to
guidance on materiality in other Australian pronouncements. There is no
financial impact.

AASB 2011-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising from the
Consolidation and Joint Arrangements Standards (AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 101,
107, 112, 118, 121, 124, 132, 133, 136, 138, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 5,
9, 16 &17)
This Standard gives effect to consequential changes arising from the
issuance of AASB 10, AASB 11, AASB 127 Separate Financial
Statements and AASB Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures.
There is no financial impact for the Commission.

AASB 1055

Budgetary Reporting
This Standard requires specific budgetary disclosures in the general
purpose financial statements of the not-for-profit entities within the
General Government Sector. The Commission will be required to disclose
additional budgetary information and explanations of major variances
between actual and budgeted amounts, though there is no financial
impact.

AASB 2012-3

Amendments to AASB 136 – Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities (AASB 132)
This Standard adds application guidance to AASB 132 to address
inconsistencies identified in applying some of the offsetting criteria
including clarifying the meaning of “currently has a legally enforceable
right of set-off” and that some gross settlement systems may be
considered equivalent to net settlement. There is no financial impact.

AASB 2013-3

Amendments to AASB 136 – Recoverable Amount Disclosures for NonFinancial Assets
This Standard introduces editorial and disclosure changes. There is no
financial impact.
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AASB 2013-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Australian
Implementation Guidance for Not-for Profit Entities – Control and
Structured Entities (AASB 10, 12 &1049)
The amendments, issued in October 2013, provide significant guidance in
determining whether a not-for-profit entity controls another entity when
financial returns are not a key attribute of the investor’s relationship. The
Standard has no financial impact in its own right, rather the impact results
from the adoption of the amended AASB 10.

AASB 2013-9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
Framework, Materiality and Financial Instruments

–

Conceptual

Part B of this omnibus Standard makes amendments to other Standards
arising from the deletion of references to AASB 1031 in other Standards
for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014. It has no financial
impact.
AASB 2014-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
Part A of this Standard consists primarily of clarifications to Accounting
Standards and has no financial impact for the Commission.
Part B of this Standard has no financial impact as the Commission
contributes to schemes that are either defined contribution plans, or
deemed to be defined contribution plans.
Part C of this Standard has no financial impact as it removes references to
AASB 1031 Materiality from a number of Accounting Standards.

AASB 2015-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Fair value Disclosures
of Not-for Profit Public Sector Entities
This Standard relieves not-for-profit public sector entities from the
reporting burden associated with various disclosures required by AASB 13
for assets within the scope of AASB 116 that are held primarily for their
current service potential rather than to generate future net cash inflows. It
has no financial impact.
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Future impact of Australian Accounting Standards not yet operative
The Commission cannot early adopt an Australian Accounting Standard unless specifically
permitted by TI 1101 ‘Application of Australian Accounting Standards and Other
Pronouncements’ or by an exemption from TI 1101. By virtue of a limited exemption, the
Commission has early adopted AASB 2015-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards – Fair Value Disclosures of Not-for-Profit Public Sector Entities. Where applicable,
The Commission plans to apply the following Australian Accounting Standards from their
application date.
Operative for
reporting
periods
beginning
on/after
AASB 9

Financial Instruments

1 Jan 2018

This Standard supersedes AASB 139 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, introducing a
number of changes to accounting treatments.
The mandatory application date of this Standard is
currently 1 January 2018 after being amended by AASB
2012-6, AASB 2013-9 and AASB 2014-1. Amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards. The Commission has
not yet determined the application or the potential impact
of the Standard.
AASB 15

Revenue from Contracts with Customers
This Standard establishes the principles that the
Department shall apply to report useful information to
users of financial statements about the nature, amount,
timing and uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising
from a contract with a customer. The Commission has not
yet determined the application or potential impact of the
Standard.
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Operative for
reporting
periods
beginning
on/after
AASB 2010-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from AASB 9 (December 2010) [AASB 1, 3, 4, 5, 7, 101,
102, 108, 112, 118, 120, 121, 127, 128, 131, 132, 136,
137, 139, 1023 & 1038 and Int 2, 5, 10, 12, 19 & 127]

1 Jan 2018

This Standard makes consequential amendments to other
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations as a
result of issuing AASB 9 in December 2010.
The mandatory application date of this Standard has been
amended by AASB 2012-6 and AASB 2014-1to 1 January
2018. The Commission has not yet determined the
application or the potential impact of the Standard.

AASB 2013-9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
Conceptual Framework, Materiality and Financial
Instruments.

1 Jan 2015

Part C of this omnibus Standard defers the application of
AASB 9 to 1 January 2017. The application date of AASB
9 was subsequently deferred to 1 January 2018 by AASB
2014-1. The Commission has not yet determined the
application or the potential impact of AASB 9.
AASB 2014-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
Part E of this Standard makes amendments to AASB9 and
consequential amendments to other Standards. It has not
yet been assessed by the Commission to determine the
application or the potential impact of the Standard.
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Operative for
reporting
periods
beginning
on/after
AASB 2014-3

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations (AASB 1 & 11)

1 Jan 2016

The Commission establishes Joint Operations in pursuit
of its objectives and does not routinely acquire interests in
Joint Operations. Therefore, there is no financial impact
on application of the Standard.
AASB 2014-4

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –
Clarification of Acceptable Methods of depreciation and
Amortisation (AASB 116 & 138)

1 Jan 2016

The adoption of this Standard has no financial impact for
the Commission as depreciation and amortisation is not
determined by reference to revenue generation, but by
reference to consumption of future economic benefits.
AASB 2014-5

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from AASB 15

1 Jan 2017

This Standard gives effect to the consequential
amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
(including interpretations) arising from the issuance of
AASB 15. The Commission has not yet determined the
application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 2014-7

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from AASB 9 (December 2014)
This Standard gives effect to the consequential
amendments to Australian Accounting Standards
(including interpretations) arising from the issuance of
AASB 9 (December 2014). The Commission has not yet
determined the application or the potential impact of the
Standard.
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Operative
for
reporting
periods
beginning
on/after
AASB 2014-8

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from AASB 9 (December 2014 – Application of AASB 9
(December 2009) and AASB 9 (December 2010) (AASB 9
– 2009 & 2010).

1 Jan 2015

This Standard makes amendments to AASB 9 Financial
Instruments December 2009 and AASB 9 Financial
Instruments (December 2010, arising from the issuance
of AASB 9 Financial Instruments in December 2014. The
Commission has not yet determined the application or the
potential impact of the Standard.
AASB2014-9

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Equity
Method in Separate Financial Statements (AASB 1, 127 &
128)

1 Jan 2016

This Standard amends AASB 127, and consequentially
amends AASB 1 and AASB 128, to allow entities to use
the equity method of accounting for investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates in their
separate financial statements. The Commission has not
yet determined the application or the potential impact of
the Standard.
AASB 2014.10

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint venture (AASB 10 & 128)
This Standard amends AASB 10 and AASB 128 to
address an inconsistency between the requirements in
AASB 10 and those in AASB 128 (August 2011), in
dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The
Commission has not yet determined the application or the
potential impact of the Standard.
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Operative
for
reporting
periods
beginning
on/after
AASB 2015-1

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards – Annual
Improvements to Australian Accounting Standards 20122014 Cycle (AASB 1, 2, 3, 5, 7, 11, 110, 119, 121, 133,
134, 137 & 140)

1 Jan 2016

These amendments arise from the issuance of International
Financial Reporting Standard Annual Improvements to
IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle in September 2014, and editorial
corrections. The Commission has not yet determined the
application or the potential impact of the Standard.
AASB 2015-2

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –
Disclosure Initiative: Amendments to AASB 101 (AASB 7,
101, 134 & 1049)

1 Jan 2016

This Standard amends AASB 101 to provide clarification
regarding the disclosure requirements in AASB 101.
Specifically, the Standard proposes narrow-focus
amendments to address some of the concerns expressed
about existing presentation and disclosure requirements
and to ensure entities are able to use judgement when
applying a Standard in determining what information to
disclose in their financial statements. There is no financial
impact.
AASB 2015-3

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards arising
from the Withdrawal of AASB 1031 Materiality

1 Jul 2015

This Standard completes the withdrawal of references to
AASB 1031 in all Australian Accounting Standards and
interpretations, allowing that Standard to effectively be
withdrawn. There is no financial impact.
AASB 2015-6

Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards –
Extended related party Disclosures to Not-for-Profit Public
Sector Entities (AASB 10, 124 &1049)
The amendments extend the scope of AASB 124 to include
application by not-for-profit public sector entities.
Implementation guidance is included to assist application of
the Standard by not-for-profit public sector entities. The
Commission has not yet determined the application of the
Standard, though there is no financial impact.
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Note 7. Employee benefits expense
Wages and salaries (a)
GROH rental expense
Staff travel expense
Other staffing costs(a)
Superannuation - defined contribution plans (b)

2015
$
923,128
64,436
100,215
56,416
98,052
1,242,247

2014
$
1,006,104
66,515
102,748
67,818
92,826
1,336,011

(a)

Includes the value of the fringe benefit to the employee plus the fringe benefits tax component,
leave entitlements including superannuation contribution component
(b)
Defined contribution plans include West State, Gold State and GESB Super Scheme (contributions
paid).
Employment on-costs expenses such as workers' compensation insurance are included at note 12
'Administration expenses'.
Employment on-costs liability is included at note 23 'Provisions'.

Note 8. Supplies and services
Communications
Consumables
Services & contracts

40,084
49,984
390,554
480,622

43,510
37,250
471,114
552,874

Note 9. Depreciation and amortisation expense
Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment

32,283

41,783

Total depreciation

32,283

41,783

218,827
20,044
32,961

241,594
2,554
17,064

271,832

261,212

20,000
95,000
0
1,310,845
1,425,845

2,250,000
10,000
2,500
1,037,712
3,300,212

Note 10. Accommodation expenses
Lease rentals
Repairs and maintenance
Utilities
Note 11. Grants and subsidies
Recurrent
State Government
Local Government
Non-Government Organisations
Community
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Note 12. Administration expenses
Operating lease fleet vehicles
Repairs and maintenance
Travel - non-staff related
Audit fees
Insurances(a)
Advertising
Return of R4R Funds –
Support to Regional Groupings of Local Government
Other administration expenses(a)

(a)

2015
$
18,047
52,624
43,885
60,048
28,999
31,780

2014
$
25,831
39,211
57,049
52,021
27,763
6,569

51,810
287,193

109,008
31,124
348,576

Includes workers' compensation insurance and other employment on-costs. The on-costs liability
associated with the recognition of annual and long service leave liability is included at note 23
'Provisions'. Superannuation contributions accrued as part of the provision for leave are employee
benefits and are not included in employment on-costs.

Note 13. Interest revenue
Interest Revenue
Note 14. Other revenue
Recoups of expenditure from various bodies
Sundry income
Other receipts
Note 15. Income from State Government
Appropriation received during the year:
Service appropriation (a)
Salaries and Allowances Act 1975 – CEO Salary
Resources received free of charge: (b)
Determined on the basis of the following estimates
Provided by agencies:
Department of Finance Building Management and Works
Royalties for Regions Fund:
Regional grants scheme
Regional & statewide initiatives – operational funding (a)
Regional workers incentives allowance payments (c)
Regional community services fund (c)
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-

2,046
2,046

2,693
63,560
1,395
67,648

1,863
29,980
31,843

$

$

1,000
257,000
258,000

1,000
252,000
253,000

17,015
17,015

15,508
15,508

1,966,000
17,301
1,473,856
3,457,157

2,004,000
42,614
3,780,000
5,826,614

3,732,172

6,095,122
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(a) Royalties for Regions operational funding, which commenced in 2014, now funds the net cost of services
delivered. The operational revenue is cash based and there is no component for a receivable (asset).
(b) Discretionary transfers of assets (including grants) and liabilities between State Government agencies are
reported under Income from State Government. Transfers of assets and liabilities in relation to a restructure
of administrative arrangements are recognised as distribution to owners by the transferor and contribution by
owners by the transferee under AASB 1004 in respect of net assets transferred. Other non-discretionary
non-reciprocal transfers of assets and liabilities designated as contributions by owners under TI 955 are also
recognised directly to equity.
(c) This is a sub-fund within the over-arching ‘Royalties for Regions Fund’. The recurrent funds are committed to
projects and programs in WA regional areas.

Note 16. Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Current
Community Resource Centre Wyndham
Kimberley Regional Development Scheme
Kimberley Capabilities Register
Royalties for Regions Fund(a)
Warmun Re-Establishment Taskforce
Warmun Inc.
KDC 27th Pay Period
Treasury Appropriation
Total current restricted cash

2015
$

2014
$

75,000
181,794
14,202
1,145,943
169,563
90,540
27,445
2,000
1,706,487

75,000
220,295
17,202
1,056,062
169,618
24,544
1,000
1,563,721

(a) Unspent funds are committed to projects and programs in WA regional areas.

Note 17. Receivables
Current
Receivables
GST receivable
Total Receivables

46,962
99,924
146,886

11,158
6,225
17,383

The Commission does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements as security for
receivables.
Note 18. Amounts receivable for services (Holding Account)
Non-current

39,000
39,000

39,000
39,000

Represents the non-cash component of service appropriations. It is restricted in that it can
only be used for asset replacement or payment of leave liability.
Note 19. Other Assets
Current
Prepayments

7,882
7,882
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2015
$

Note 20. Property, plant and equipment
Improvements - leasehold
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Furniture, Fixtures & Fittings
Accumulated depreciation
Computing equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation

2014
$

130,226
(130,226)
-

130,226
(130,226)
-

79,140
(26,592)
52,548

79,140
(19,319)
59,821

83,275
(79,705)
3,570

83,275
(58,283)
24,992

17,937
13,812
4,125

17,937
(10,224)
7,713

60,243

92,526

Office equipment
At cost
Accumulated depreciation
Total property, plant and equipment

Reconciliations
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and
end of the reporting period are set out below.
Improvements Furniture,
Computing
Leasehold
Fixtures & Equipment
Fittings
2015
Carrying amount at
start of period
Additions
Depreciation
Carrying amount at
end of period
2014
Carrying amount at
start of period
Additions
Depreciation
Carrying amount at
end of period

Office
Total
Equipment

$

$

$

$

$

-

59,821

24,992

7,713

92,526

-

(7,273)

(21,422)

(3,588)

(32,283)

-

52,548

3,570

4,125

60,243

7,670
-

67,243
-

48,096

11,300
-

134,309
-

(7,670)

(7,422)

(23,104)

(3,587)

(41,783)

-

59,821

24,992

7,713

92,526
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Note 21. Impairment of assets
There were no indications of impairment of property, plant and equipment, or intangible
assets at 30 June 2015.
The Commission held no goodwill or intangible assets with an indefinite useful life during
the reporting period. At the end of the reporting period there were no intangible assets not
yet available for use.
All surplus assets at 30 June 2015 have either been classified as assets held for sale or
written off.
2015
$

Note 22. Payables
Current
Trade payables
Other payables

GST Payable

Accrued expenses
Accrued salaries
Total Payables
Note 23. Provisions
Current
Employee benefits provision
Annual leave (a)
Long service leave (b)
Other provisions
Employment on-costs(c)
Total current provisions
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2014
$

218,159
37,798
255,957

36,238
6,993
43,231

3,594
3,594

675
675

3,032
27,947
30,979

2,112
19,069
21,181

290,530

65,087

202,907
149,947
352,854

178,748
166,253
345,001

46,049

41,435

398,903

386,436
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Non-current
Employee benefits provision
Long service leave (b)
Other provisions
Employment on-costs(c)
Total non-current provisions
(a)

55,685
55,685

35,074
34,074

5,290

2,936

60,975

38,010

100,648
102,259
202,907

97,345
81,403
178,748

Long service leave liabilities have been classified as current where there is no
unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting
period. Assessments indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as
follows:
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after the reporting period

(c)

2014
$

Annual leave liabilities have been classified as current as there is no unconditional
right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after reporting date. Assessments
indicate that actual settlement of the liabilities will occur as follows:
Within 12 months of the end of the reporting period
More than 12 months after reporting date

(b)

2015
$

16,085
189,547
205,632

38,185
163,143
201,328

The settlement of annual and long service leave liabilities give rise to the payment of
employment on-costs including workers compensation insurance. The provision is
the present value of expected future payments.
The associated expense is included at note 12 ‘Administration expenses'.
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Movements in provisions
Movements in each class of provisions during the financial year, other than employee
benefits, are set out below.
2015
2014
$
$
Employment on-cost provision
Carrying amount at start of year
44,371
51,028
Additional provisions recognised
6,968
(6,657)
Payments/other sacrifices of economic benefits
Carrying amount at end of year
51,339
44,371
Note 24. Equity
The Government holds the equity interest in the Commission on behalf of the community.
Equity represents the residual interest in the net assets of the Commission. The asset
revaluation surplus represents that portion of equity resulting from the revaluation of noncurrent assets.
Contributed equity
Balance at start of year
Contributions by owners
Capital contribution
Balance at end of period
Accumulated surplus/ (deficit)
Balance at start of year
Result for the period
Balance at end of period
Total equity at end of period

145,000
145,000

145,000
145,000

1,943,474
59,798
2,003,272
2,148,272

1,655,131
288,343
1,943,474
2,088,474

Note 25. Notes to the Statement of Cash Flows
Reconciliation of cash
Cash at the end of the financial year as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows is
reconciled to the related items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows:
Cash and cash equivalent
Restricted cash and cash equivalent (refer to note 16)
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2015
2014
$
$
Reconciliation of net cost of services to net cash flows provided by / (used in)
operating activities
Net cost of services
(3,672,374)
(5,806,779)
Non-cash items:
Depreciation expense (note 9)
Resources received free of charge
Net loss on sale of plant and equipment

32,283
17,015
-

41,783
15,508
-

(Increase)/decrease in assets:
Current receivables (a)
Other current assets

(35,804)
(1,709)

13,510
10,692

Increase/(decrease) in liabilities:
Current payables (a)
Current provisions
Non-current provisions

222,524
12,467
22,966

(2,261,665)
6,681
(56,529)

(90,780)
(3,493,412)

45,850
(7,990,949)

Net GST receipts/(payments)(b)
Change in GST receivables/payables (c)
Net cash (used in) operating activities

(a) Note that the Australian Taxation Office (ATO) receivable/payable in respect of GST and the
receivable/payable in respect of the sale/purchase of non-current assets are not included in these items as
they do not form part of the reconciling items.
(b) This is the net GST paid/received, i.e. cash transactions.
(c) This reverses out the GST in receivables and payables.

Note 26. Resources received free of charge
During the period the following services were provided
by the Department of Finance:
Building Management and Works –
Government Accommodation
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2015
$

2014
$

Note 27. Commitments
Lease commitments
Commitments in relation to leases contracted for at the end of the reporting period but
not recognised in the financial statements are payable as follows:
Within 1 year
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

209,889
244,671
454,560

231,093
456,268
687,361

Office leases are due for review in 2016 and 2018 and therefore are considered as noncancellable operating leases.
Other expenditure commitments
Other expenditure commitments are purchases orders issued to the end of the reporting
period but not recognised as liabilities, are payable:
2015
2014
$
$
Within 1 year
34,409
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years
34,409
Note 28. Contingent liabilities and contingent assets
There are no contingent liabilities or assets that the Commission is aware of as at 30
June 2015.
Contaminated Sites
Under the Contaminated Sites Act 2003, the Commission is required to report known
and suspected contaminated sites to the Department of Environment Regulation (DER).
In accordance with the Act, DER classifies these sites on the basis of the risk to human
health, the environment and environmental values. Where sites are classified as
contaminated – remediation required or possibly contaminated – investigation required,
the Commission may have a liability in respect of investigation or remediation expenses.
The Commission has no known or suspected contaminated sites.
Note 29. Events occurring after the end of the reporting period
There were no significant events occurring after the end of the reporting period.
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Note 30. Explanatory statement
This statement provides details of any significant variations between estimates and actual results for 2015 and between the actual
results for 2015 and 2014. Significant variations are considered to be those greater than 10% and $100,000.

Variance
Note
$000
Statement of Comprehensive Income
(Controlled Operations)
Employee benefits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Administration expenses
Total cost of services

1
2

3,A

Original
Budget
2015
$000

2,101
629
50
274
0
255
3,309

Income
Revenue
Interest revenue
Other revenue
Total Revenue

0
22
22
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Actual
2015
$000

Actual
2014
$000

Variance
Variance
between
between
actual results
estimate &
for 2015 &
actual
2014
$000
$000
Amounts to
Comment on

1,242
481
32
272
1,426
287
3,740

1,336
553
42
261
3,300
349
5,841

-859
-148
-18
-2
1,426
32
431

-94
-72
-10
11
-1,874
-61
-2,101

0
68
68

2
32
34

0
46
46

-2
36
34
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Note 30. Explanatory statement cont’d
Total income other than income from State
Government
NET COST OF SERVICES
Income from State Government
Service appropriation ( Inc SAT)
Resources received free of charge
Royalties for Regions - operational funding
Royalties for Regions - grant & other funding
Total income from State Government
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE
PERIOD

4,B

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE PERIOD*
Statement of Financial Position
(Controlled Operations)
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Receivables
Other current assets
Total Current Assets

5
6,C
D

22
3,287

68
3,672

34
5,807

46
385

34
-2,134

258
0
2,064
795
3,117

258
17
1,966
1,491
3,732

253
16
2,004
3,823
6,095

0
17
-98
696
615

5
2
-38
-2,331
-2,363

3,117

3,732

6,095

615

-2,363

-170

60

288

230

-229

575
581
142
17
1,315

938
1,706
147
8
2,799

859
1,564
17
6
2,447

363
1,125
5
-9
1,484

79
143
130
2
353
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Note 30. Explanatory statement cont’d
Non-Current Assets
Amounts receivable for services
Property, plant and equipment
Other non-current assets
Total Non-Current Assets

39
19
49
107

39
60
0
99

39
93
0
132

0
41
-49
-8

0
-32
0
-32

1,422

2,899

2,578

1,477

321

244
397
641

290
399
689

65
386
451

46
2
48

225
12
237

44
0
44

61
0
61

38
0
38

17
0
17

23
0
23

Total Liabilities

685

750

490

65

261

NET ASSETS

737

2,148

2,088

1,411

60

TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Payables
Provisions
Total Current Liabilities

E

Non-Current Liabilities
Provisions
Other non-current liabilities
Total Non-Current Liabilities
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Note 30. Explanatory statement
EQUITY
Contributed equity
Accumulated surplus/(deficit)
TOTAL EQUITY
Statement of Cash Flows
(Controlled Operations)
CASH FLOWS FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation
Royalties for Regions Fund
Net cash provided by State Government
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Payments
Employee benefits
Supplies and services
Accommodation
Grants and subsidies
Other payments

7,F

8,G
9,H
10,I
11,J

145
592
737

145
2,003
2,148

145
1,943
2,088

0
1,411
1,411

0
60
60

258
2,859
3,117

258
3,457
3,715

253
5,827
6,080

0
598
598

5
-2,369
-2,364

-2,059
-658
-282
0
-733

-1,165
-428
-288
-1,293
-460

-1,353
-569
-247
-5,510
-907

894
230
-6
-1,293
273

188
142
-41
4,217
447
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Note 30. Explanatory statement cont’d
Receipts
Interest received
GST receipts
Other receipts
Net cash provided by/(used in) operating
activities

12,K

0
432
22

0
69
71

24
542
30

0
-363
49

-24
-473
42

-3,278

-3,493

-7,991

-215

4,498

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

0

-161

222

-1,911

383

2,133

1,317

2,423

4,334

1,106

-1,911

1,156

2,645

2,423

1,489

222

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of non-current physical assets
Purchase of non-current physical assets*
Net cash provided by/(used in) investing
activities
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
period
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END
OF PERIOD
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Note 30 cont’d. Major Variance Narratives (Controlled Operations)

1

Variations between estimate and actual
Employee benefits expense underspent by $859k as the budget was based on a
West Kimberley Strategic Projects Unit (WKSPU), with 3 additional resources, being
established in Broome. This did not proceed.

2

Supplies and services underspent by $148k primarily due to the Budget estimated to
spend all R4R Business case funding through supplies and services, however,
$168k was paid as grants.

3

Grants budget was set at nil. R4R funding received during the year, outside of the
Budget process, resulted in grants totalling $1142k to be expensed. In addition, a
grant of $250k was paid for the Yawuru Home Ownership from R4R funding received
late June 2014. The Commission also expensed some sundry grants totalling $38k.

4

Variance of $696k over the Budget reflects R4R grant and other funding received
outside of the Budget process and funding allocated to the WKSPU not proceeding.

5

When the 2014-15 Budget was set, the Commission accounted for R4R operational
funding as unrestricted cash. In May 2015, Treasury provided written advice that
R4R operational funding should be accounted for as restricted cash. The
Commission moved the operational funding held from unrestricted cash to restricted
cash which impacted on both the unrestricted and restricted cash balances.

6

Restricted cash variance $1125k due primarily to R4R programs totalling $1061k not
being expensed as anticipated.

7

Variance of $598k over the Budget reflects R4R grant and other funding received
outside of the Budget process and funding allocated to the WKSPU not proceeding

8

Employee benefits expense underspent by $894k as the budget was based on a
West Kimberley Strategic Projects Unit (WKSPU), with 3 additional resources, being
established in Broome. This did not proceed.

9

Supplies and services underspent by $230k primarily due to the Budget estimated to
spend all R4R Business case funding through supplies and services, however,
$168k was paid as grants. Budget also included other program expenses which did
not proceed as anticipated.

10

Grants budget was set at nil. R4R funding received during the year, outside of the
Budget process, resulted in grants totalling $1005k to be paid. In addition, a grant of
$250k was paid for the Yawuru Home Ownership from R4R funding received late
June 2014. The Commission also paid some sundry grants totalling $38k

11
12

Other payments expense underspent by $273k. GST payments to taxation authority
were over estimated in the budget at $480k. Actual GST payments position was
$132k. Administration expenses were underspent by $26k due to operational
changes.
GST receipts variance $363k due to over estimation when the Budget was set.
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Note 30 cont’d. Major Variance Narratives (Controlled Operations)
Variances between actual results for 2015 and 2014
A

Grants actual 2014 reflects the payment of a one of $2.2m grant for the Kimberley
Aboriginal Community Housing Project (KACHP) - Halls Creek extension and a one
of $780k grant for the KACHP Kununurra extension.

B

Refer note A. Variation due to one of R4R funding of $3m received in 2014 to fund
the KACHP extensions. R4R funding in 2015 is significantly less for grants and other
programs.

C
D
E
F
G

Variation of $143k in restricted cash primarily due to carryover of $165k R4R grant
funds which could not be spent due to administrative processes associated with the
grant approval process.
Receivables variation of $130k due to increase of $94k for GST receivable and $36k
for trade debtors.
Accounts payable variation of $226k reflects accrued expenses as at 30 June of
$210k of which $151k is accrued grant expenses.
Refer note B. Variation due to one of R4R funding of $3m received in 2014 to fund
the KACHP extensions. R4R funding in 2015 is significantly less for grants and other
programs.
Employee benefits underspend of $188k is primarily due to the Commission not filling
a vacant position in the Derby office for the full year.

H

Supplies and services underspent by $142k primarily due to the Budget estimated to
spend all R4R Business case funding through supplies and services, however, $168k
was paid as grants.

I

Grant and subsidies variation of $4.2m is due primarily to one of grants payments in
2014 for the KACHP extensions of $3m, final cash payments of $2.2m for the Ord
Enhancement Scheme less grants of $1.3m paid in 2015.

J

Other payments variation of $447k primarily due to GST payment in 2014 being
$544k while GST payments in 2015 being $132k. Administration expenses in 2014
also included a one of payment of $109k for return of R4R funding.

K

Variation of $473k in GST receipts due to GST component on one of grants $5.2m
paid in 2014.
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Note 31. Financial instruments
(a)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Financial instruments held by the Commission are cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash and cash equivalents, loans and receivables and payables. The Commission has
limited exposure to financial risks. The Commission's overall risk management program
focuses on managing the risks identified below.
Credit risk
Credit risk arises when there is the possibility of the Commission’s receivables defaulting
on their contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Commission. The
Commission measures credit risk on a fair value basis and monitors risk on a regular
basis.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period in relation to each
class of recognised financial assets is the gross carrying amount of those assets inclusive
of any provisions for impairment as shown in the table at Note 31 ‘Financial instruments
disclosures’ and Note 17 ‘Receivables’.
Credit risk associated with the Commission’s financial assets is minimal because the main
receivable is the amounts receivable for services (holding account). For receivables other
than government, the Commission trades only with recognised, creditworthy third parties.
The Commission has policies in place to ensure that sales of products and services are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis with the result that the Commission’s exposure to bad
debts is minimal. At the end of the reporting period there were no significant
concentrations of credit risk.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk arises when the Commission is unable to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due.
The Commission is exposed to liquidity risk through its trading in the normal course of
business.
The Commission has appropriate procedures to manage cash flows including drawdown
of appropriations by monitoring forecast cash flows to ensure that sufficient funds are
available to meet its commitments.
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Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates and
interest rates will affect the Commission’s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. The Commission does not trade in foreign currency and is not materially
exposed to other price risks.
The Commission’s has no exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates because
all cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are non-interest bearing and the
Commission has no borrowings.
(b) Categories of financial instruments
The carrying amounts of each of the following categories of financial assets and financial
liabilities at the end of the reporting period are:
2015
2014
$
$
Financial assets
Cash and Cash equivalents
938,182
859,203
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
1,706,487
1,563,721
Loans and receivables (a)
85,962
50,158
Financial liabilities
Payables
(a)

290,530

65,087

The amount of loans and receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO
(statutory receivable).

(c) Financial Instruments Disclosure
Credit risk, liquidity risk and interest risk exposure
The following table discloses the Commission’s maximum exposure to credit risk and the
ageing analysis of financial assets. The Commission’s maximum exposure to credit risk at
the end of the reporting period is the carrying amount of financial assets as shown below.
The table discloses the ageing of financial assets that are past due but not impaired and
impaired financial assets. The table is based on information provided to senior
management of the Commission.
The Commission does not hold any collateral as security or other credit enhancements
relating to the financial assets it holds.
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Ageing analysis of financial assets

Carrying
Amount
$
2015
Cash & cash equivalents 938,182
Restricted cash & cash
1,706,487
equivalents
Receivables (a)
46,962
Amounts receivable for
39,000
services
2,730,631
2014
Cash & cash equivalents 859,203
Restricted cash & cash
1,563,721
equivalents
Receivables (a)
11,158
Amounts receivable for
39,000
services
2,473,082

Past due but not impaired
Not past due Up to
1-3 months 3 months
and not
1 month
to 1 year
impaired
$
$
$
$

1-5 years

$

More than Impaired
5 years
financial
assets
$
$

938,182

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,706,487

-

-

-

-

-

-

46,962

-

-

-

-

-

-

39,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,730,631

-

-

-

-

-

-

859,203

-

-

-

-

-

-

1,563,721

-

-

-

-

-

-

11,158

-

-

-

-

-

-

39,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,473,082

-

-

-

-

-

-

(a) The amount of receivables excludes GST recoverable from the ATO (statutory receivable)
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Interest rate exposure and maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities
Liquidity risk and interest rate exposure
The following table details the Commission’s interest rate exposure and the contractual maturity analysis of financial assets and financial liabilities.
The maturity analysis section includes interest and principal cash flows. The interest rate exposure section analyses only the carrying amounts of
each item.
Interest rate exposure
Maturity dates
Weighted Carrying
Variable NonNominal Up to
1-3 months 3 months 1-5 years More than
Average
Amount
Interest Interest
Amount 1 month
to 1 year
5 years
Effective
Rate
Bearing
Interest
Rate %
$
%
$
$
$
$
$
$
2015
Financial Assets
Cash & cash equivalents
938,182
938,182
938,182 938,182
Restricted cash & cash
1,706,487
1,706,487 1,706,487 1,706,487
equivalents
Receivables (a)
46,962
46,962
46,962
46,962
Amounts receivable for
39,000
39,000
39,000
39,000
services
2,730,631
2,730,631 2,730,631 2,691,631
39,000
Financial Liabilities
Payables (a)
286,936
286,936 286,936
286,936
286,936
286,936 286,936
286,936
2014
Financial Assets
Cash & cash equivalents
Restricted cash & cash
equivalents
Receivables (a)
Amounts receivable for
services

859,203

859,203

1,563,721

1,563,721

11,158

11,158

11,158

39,000

39,000

39,000

2,473,082

2,473,082

Financial Liabilities
Payables (a)

859,203

859,203

-

-

-

-

11,158

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

39,000

-

-

-

39,000

-

-

-

-

1,563,721 1,563,721

2,473,082 2,434,082

64,412
64,412
64,412
64,412
64,412
64,412
64,412
64,412
(a) The amount of receivables/payables excludes GST recoverable/payable from/to the ATO (statutory receivable)
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Fair values
All financial assets and liabilities recognised in the Statement of Financial Position, whether
they are carried at cost or fair value, are recognised at amounts that represent a reasonable
approximation of fair value unless otherwise stated in the applicable notes
Note 32. Remuneration of members of the accountable authority and senior officers
Remuneration of members of the accountable authority
The numbers of members of the accountable authority, whose total of fees, salaries,
superannuation and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:
Remuneration Band ($)
1 - 10,000
10,001 - 20,000
40,001 - 50,000
270,001 - 280,000
280,001 - 290,000
Base remuneration and superannuation
Annual leave and long service leave accruals
Other benefits
The total remuneration of the members of the
accountable authority:

2015
9
2
1
-

2014
7
1
1

$

$

293,597
187,198
32,487
513,282

320,633
168,454
43,501
532,588

Note 33. Remuneration of senior officers
The number of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the
accountable authority, whose total fees, salaries, superannuation, non-monetary benefits
and other benefits for the financial year, fall within the following bands are:
2015
2014
$190,001 - $200,000
1
$210,001 - $220,000
1
The total remuneration of senior officers is:
$
$
Base remuneration and superannuation
121,129
137,553
Annual leave and long service leave accruals
46,067
40,251
Other benefits
47,952
16,944
215,148
194,478
The total remuneration includes the superannuation expense incurred by the Commission in
respect of senior officers other than senior officers reported as members of the accountable
authority.
No senior officers are members of the Pension Scheme.
Note 34. Remuneration of auditor
Remuneration paid or payable to the Auditor General in respect of the audit for the current
financial year is as follows:
2015
2014
$
$
Auditing the accounts, financial statements
and key performance indicators
37,700
36,600
Payment for auditing services is paid in the following year. Audit fee for 2014-15 will be paid
in 2015-16.
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Note 35 Schedule of income and expenses by service
Regional Promotion
COST OF SERVICES
Expenses
Employee benefits expense
Supplies and services
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Accommodation expenses
Grants and subsidies
Administration expenses
Total cost of services
Income
Interest revenue
Other revenue
Total income other than income from State
Government
NET COST OF SERVICES
INCOME FROM STATE GOVERNMENT
Service appropriation
Resources received free of charge
Royalties for Regions – operational funding
Royalties for Regions – other funding
Total income from State Government
Surplus/(deficit) for the period

2015
$

2014
$

Industry &
Infrastructure
2015
2014
$
$

Total
2015
$

2014
$

695,658
269,148
18,079
152,226
798,473
160,828
2,094,412

935,209
387,012
29,248
182,848
2,310,148
244,003
4,088,468

546,589
211,474
14,204
119,606
627,372
126,365
1,645,610

400,802
165,862
12,535
78,364
990,064
104,573
1,752,200

1,242,247
480,622
32,283
271,832
1,425,845
287,193
3,740,022

1,336,011
552,874
41,783
261,212
3,300,212
348,576
5,840,668

37,883

22,290

29,765

2,046
9,553

67,648

2,046
31,843

37,883

22,290

29,765

11,599

67,648

33,889

2,056,529

4,066,178

1,615,845

1,740,601

3,672,374

5,806,779

144,480
9,528
1,100,960
835,048
2,090,016
33,487

177,100
10,855
1,402,800
2,675,830
4,266,585
200,407

113,520
7,487
865,040
656,109
1,642,156
26,311

75,900
4,653
601,200
1,146,784
1,828,537
87,936

258,000
17,015
1,966,000
1,491,157
3,732,172
59,798

253,000
15,508
2,004,000
3,822,614
6,095,122
288,343

The Schedule of Income and Expenses by Service should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Key Performance Indicators
Performance management enhances the transparency and accountability of the Commission
and enables its service delivery to be readily assessed as it works to achieve desired
outcomes that are consistent with its statutory responsibilities and high level government
goals (described in Section 1).
The desired outcome from the Commission’s activities is:
“An environment conducive to the balanced economic and social development of the
Kimberley Region.”
Accordingly, the Commission delivers two major services to its customers:
 Policies, strategies, plans and regional promotion
 Industry and infrastructure identification, coordination and development
In accordance with Treasurer’s Instructions 904 and 903(8), the Commission has key
performance indicators for efficiency and effectiveness and includes a discussion of actual
results against budget targets for both financial and non-financial indicators. Comparative
information for the current and previous four reporting years has been included.

Key Performance Indicator of Effectiveness – Customer Survey
An annual customer survey is used to monitor the Commission’s level of customer service
and support its key performance indicators. Customer satisfaction is measured against a
range of elements of the Commissions service, including the effectiveness of the
Commission in achieving seven different outcomes through the delivery of services.
Advantage Communications was engaged to complete the client survey on the
Commission’s behalf for the 2014/2015 financial year. The same survey was used as
previous years to allow for comparative analysis.

Respondent Profile
This year’s customer survey was completed by 114 respondents with 35% from the Perth
metropolitan area, 59% from regional Western Australia and 6% from interstate. The
Commission provided Advantage Communications with a list of 161 clients of which the
sample group of 114 provides a maximum survey error of +/-5% at the 95% confidence
level.
The respondent group comprised 40% from the State Government Sector of Western
Australia, 23% from the Private Sector, 25% from Community Organisations, 5% from the
Commonwealth Government and 7% from Local Government. Respondents were also
categorised according to industry, with the largest percentages working in
Government/public administration/defence (37%) and community services (15%).
The respondents had varying levels of contact with the Commission; 52% had monthly, 16%
weekly, 23% half yearly and 6% annually.
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Effectiveness Indicator 1
The Kimberley Development Commission is effective and makes a positive contribution to
economic and social development in the Kimberley
The survey results illustrate the perceived effectiveness of the Commission in contributing to
the economic and social development in the Kimberley. This outcome reinforces the positive
impact the Commission is having in this area. The overall result is consistent with the high
standard achieved in the previous four years.
Survey Results
Strongly
Agree (%)

Agree (%)

Disagree
(%)

Strongly
Disagree
(%)

Don’t
Know (%)

2010/11

49

41

2

0

8

100

2011/12

30

64

3

0

3

100

2012/13

36

57

2

2

3

100

2013/14

39

57

0

0

4

100

2014/15

50

44

2

0

4

100

Results Against Target
Strongly
Agree (%)

Agree (%)

Total %

Target %

Total
(%)

Target Result

2010/11

49

41

90

90

Met

2011/12

30

64

94

90

Met

2012/13

36

57

93

90

Met

2013/14

39

57

96

90

Met

2014/15

50

44

94

90

Met

Effectiveness Indicator 2
The extent to which the Commission is assessed by its clients as a reliable and accessible
source of information and advice on the Kimberley region and regional development issues.
The provision of high quality information is an important component of the Commission’s
regional development activities. Similarly to previous years, survey respondents were asked
to indicate whether they considered the Commission to be a reliable source of information
and advice on regional development issues. The table below provides the last five years’
results for this outcome.
The 2014/15 outcome reinforces the positive impact the Commission is having in this area.
These results suggest that respondents are taking the opportunity to access information and
continue to be reliably informed. The overall results for this outcome indicate a consistent
and steady trend over the last four years.
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Survey Result
Strongly
Agree (%)

Agree
(%)

Disagree
(%)

Strongly
Disagree
(%)

Don’t
Know (%)

Total
(%)

2010/11

43

47

1

0

9

100

2011/12

36

55

5

0

4

100

2012/13

39

50

3

3

5

100

2013/14

43

53

3

0

1

100

2014/15

51

41

5

0

3

100

Results Against Target
Strongly
Agree (%)

Agree (%)

Total %

Target %

Target Result

2010/11

43

47

90

90

Met

2011/12

36

55

91

90

Met

2012/13

39

50

89

90

Not Met

2013/14

43

53

96

90

Met

2014/15

51

41

92

90

Met

The section of the survey seeking respondent views on “staff provide professional and
helpful service” again resulted in a consistently high response with 96% indicating
agreement that Commission staff provided professional and helpful advice.

Key Performance Indicators of Efficiency
The efficiency indicators for the services are calculated by the cost of the projects divided by
the number of project hours allocated by staff. To calculate the cost per project hour, grant
income and expenditure are deducted from the Total Operating Cost. Using hours spent on
each service a ratio to total hours is calculated and this ratio then determines the Total
Operating Cost for each service. For the 2014-15 year the ratio of hours has been
determined at 56% for Service one and 44% for Service two. The Commission had
announced in the 2014/15 Budget a ratio of 50% and 50% respectively for the Services,
however, the Government’s “Blueprint” initiative placed considerably more emphasis into
strategies and plans that impacted on Service one.
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Efficiency Indicators
Service 1: Policies, strategies, plans and regional promotion

Net Operating Cost
Number of Project
Hours
Cost per Project
Hour

2014/15

2013/14

2012/13

2011/12

2010/11

1,258,056

1,754,597

1,394,883

1,067,561

1,099,929

6,062

7,520

7,313

6,608

5,688

$208

$233

$191

$162

$193

Service 2: Industry and infrastructure identification, coordination and development

Net Operating Cost
Number of Project
Hours
Cost per Project
Hour

2014/15

2013/14

2012/13

2011/12

2010/11

988,473

751,970

1,188,234

1,415,140

1,518,950

4,748

3,271

6,181

8,802

7,703

$208

$230

$192

$161

$197

The decrease in cost per project hour of $25 and $22 respectively, when compared to
2013/14, is due to net operating cost reduced by $260,038 while total project hours
remained at a comparable level.
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Summary of Key Performance Indicators
This summary emphasises the Commission’s commitment to providing efficient and
effective services consistent with agreed targets. Its level of success is demonstrated
by the extent and variety of achievements described earlier and favourable
performance indicators which suggest a high level of cost effectiveness and
customer satisfaction.
1.

Comparison of actual results against targets for effectiveness indicators.
2014/2015
Target

2014/2015
Result

Reason for Significant Variation
between Target and Result

94%

Reflects the continuing work of the
Commission in delivery of its
services and programs.

90%

94%

Reflects the continuing work of the
Commission in delivery of its
services and programs.

90%

92%

90%

92%

Delivers effective activities in
assisting economic and
social development.
90%
Makes a positive
contribution to economic and
social development in the
Kimberley
Provides a reliable source of
information and advice.
Is an accessible source of
information and advice.

2. Comparison of actual results against targets for efficiency indicators.
2014/2015
Target

2014/2015
Result

Reason for Significant Variation
between Target and Result

Service 1: Policies,
strategies, plans and
regional promotion
Average cost per project
hour

$185

$208

Service 2: Industry and
infrastructure
identification,
coordination and
development
Average cost per project
hour

Staff hours were significantly less
than target estimate and this
combined with a lower than
anticipated net cost of services
contributed to a higher average
cost per project hour.

$186

$208
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Ministerial Directions
No Ministerial directives were received by the Commission during the financial year.

Other Financial Disclosures
Pricing policies of services provided
The Commission has not rendered any goods or services in the last financial year for
which a charge has been required.

Capital Works
No capital projects were commenced, underway or completed in 2014/2015.

Employment and Industrial Relations
Staff Profile
Staff Employed
Full-time permanent
Full-time contract
Part-time measured
on FTE basis
Positions vacant

2010
9
3
0.6

2011
8
5
0.8

2012
8
5
0.8

2013
6
1
0.8

2014
4
1
0.8

2015
3
4
0.8

0

0

0

4

2

1

Total staff employed

12.6

13.8

13.8

11.8

5.8

7.8

Professional (Staff) Development
To build its capacity in readiness for implementing “2036 and Beyond; A Regional
Blueprint for the Kimberley”, the Commission has paid particular attention to
enhancing the skills of its project staff and skilling with succession in mind. As
previously, this approach has drawn upon the considerable skills and experience of
long term staff, which has assisted overcome the tyranny of distance from Perth and
other centres of learning. Professional Development is undertaken in accordance
with the Public Service Award 1992 and the Public Service Government Officers
General Agreement 2014.

Worker’s Compensation
The Commission received no Worker’s Compensation Claims in 2014/2015.
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Governance Disclosures
Board and Committee Remuneration
(Annual Reporting Framework 2014/2015 reporting year)

Agencies are required to report on the individual and aggregate costs of
remunerating all positions on all Boards and Committees as described in Premier’s
Circular 2010/02 – State Government Boards and Committees and which appear in
the Register published by the Department of Premier and Cabinet.
Remuneration by Board Position for 2015
Position
Name
Type of
remuneration
Chair
Chair
Deputy Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
CEO

Ralph Addis
Michael McConachy
Ian Trust
Ian Trust
June Oscar
Malcolm Edwards
Eunice Yu
Graeme Campbell
Robert Boshammer
Robert Banfield
John Moulden
Elsia Archer
Niegel Grazia
Jeff Gooding

Annual
Annual
Annual
Per meeting
Per meeting
Per meeting
Per meeting
Per meeting
Per meeting
Per meeting
Per meeting
Per meeting
Nil claimed
Not eligible

Remuneration by Board Position for 2014
Position
Name
Type of
remuneration
Chair
Deputy Chair
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
CEO

Ralph Addis
Sciona Browne
Elsia Archer
Ian Trust
Eunice Yu
Graeme Campbell
Robert Boshammer
Robert Banfield
Niegel Grazia
Jeff Gooding

Annual
Annual
Per meeting
Per meeting
Per meeting
Per meeting
Per meeting
Per meeting
Nil claimed
Not eligible

Period of
membership
01/07/14 to 07/11/14
23/02/15 to 30/06/15
23/02/15 to 30/06/15
01/07/12 to 23/02/15
23/02/15 to 30/06/15
23/02/15 to 30/06/15
01/07/14 to 30/06/15
01/07/14 to 30/06/15
01/07/14 to 30/06/15
01/07/14 to 30/06/15
23/02/15 to 30/06/15
01/07/14 to 23/02/15
01/07/12 to 23/02/15
01/07/14 to 30/06/15

Period of
membership
01/07/13 to 30/06/14
01/07/13 to 31/10/13
01/07/13 to 30/06/14
01/07/13 to 30/06/14
01/07/13 to 30/06/14
01/07/13 to 30/06/14
01/07/13 to 30/06/14
01/07/13 to 30/06/14
01/07/13 to 30/06/14
01/07/13 to 30/06/14

Gross/Actual
Remuneration
$
14,357
15,869
1,763
3,481
841
841
2,523
2,523
2,523
2,523
841
1,682
-

Gross/Actual
Remuneration
$
49,005
3,179
4,652
4,962
3,165
3,813
4,652
3,813
-

Contracts with Senior Officers
At the date of reporting, no Senior Officers, or firms of which Senior Officers are
Members or entities in which Senior Officers have substantial interests, had interests
in existing or proposed contracts with the Commission other than normal contracts of
employment of service. On the 19 August 2014, $5,189.25 (inc. GST and Stamp
Duty) was paid, via RiskCover, to indemnify all Board Members and Senior Officers,
as listed in Section 1 Overview of this report, against a liability incurred under
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sections 13 or 14 of the Statutory Corporations (Liability of Directors) Act 1996. Of
note is that, by resolution of the Board, each Board Member contributes
$10.00/annum towards the Indemnity Insurance premium.

Other Legal Requirements
This section of the Annual Report provides a summary of the Commission’s
compliance with legislation other than the Financial Management Act 2006, Financial
Management Regulations 2007 and the Treasurer’s Instructions.

Advertising
(The Electoral Act 1907, Section 175ZE)

The Commission incurred the following expenditure in advertising, market research,
polling, direct mail and media advertising:
1. Total expenditure for 2014/2015 was $7,158.39.
2. Expenditure was incurred in the following areas:
Class
Advertising agencies

Market research
organisations
Polling organisations
Direct mail
organisations
Media advertising
organisations

Class costs ($)
7,158.39

Agencies

Agency costs ($)

AdCorp
Derby Visitor’s Centre
Market Creations
West Australian Newspaper
Lizart Productions

1,757.00
500.00
2,250.00
1996.85
654.54

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
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Disability Access and Inclusion Plan Outcomes
(Disability Services Act 1993, s29 and Schedule 3 of the Disability Services
Regulations 2004))
The Commission’s initiatives are provided against each of the seven desired
Disability Access and Inclusion Plan outcomes:
1. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access
the services of and any events organised by, a public authority.
People with disabilities have been welcomed to avail themselves of services and
attend events and meetings organised by the Commission and where necessary
appropriate support has been given.
2. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to access
the buildings and other facilities of a public authority.
The Commission has resolved to improve ACROD parking for the Kununurra
office in liaison with the Owner of the building and has continued arrangements in
Broome for people with disabilities to meet KDC staff in ground floor Department
of Planning premises instead of the first storey KDC office.
3. People with disabilities receive information from a public authority in a format that
will enable them to access the information as readily as other people are able to
access it.
The Commission offers information in alternative formats to everyone in need.
4. People with disabilities receive the same level and quality of service from the staff
of a public authority as other people receive from the staff of that public authority.
People with disabilities have been assisted in accessing the Commission’s
services by staff who greet and assist all customers with a high quality of service.
5. People with disabilities receive the same opportunities as other people to make
complaints to a public authority.
The Commission is working with the Department of Housing to implement the
West Kimberley Transitional Housing Project comprising 40 houses in Broome
and 20 in Derby for Aboriginal people in employment. Many of the houses are
disability compliant.
6. People with disabilities have the same opportunities as other people to participate
in any public consultation by a public authority.
Given the cross cultural environment of the Kimberley, the Commission is adept
at being flexible to meet the needs of people with special requirements and this
includes people with disabilities.
7. People with disability have the same opportunities as other people regarding
employment practices (recruitment and retention) by a public authority.
Although the Commission does not currently employ anyone with a disability, it’s
recruitment and retention practices are fair and unbiased.
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Reporting on Recordkeeping Plans
(State Records Act 2000 and State Records Commission Standard 2, Principle 6)
In accordance with the State Records Commission, Standard 2, Principle 6 Compliance, the Commission reports the following:
The efficiency and effectiveness of the organisation’s recordkeeping systems are
evaluated not less than once every five years.
The Commission undertook an evaluation of its recordkeeping system in December
2013 prior to preparing its third Recordkeeping Plan in May 2014. Both were
submitted to the State Records Office.
The organisation conducts a recordkeeping training program.
A formalised Recordkeeping Training program exists and supports ongoing informal
staff development about recordkeeping across the Commission’s three offices. All
staff are updated and new staff orientated to the new Recordkeeping Plan 2014 and
associated Recordkeeping Policies.
The efficiency and effectiveness of the recordkeeping training program is reviewed
from time to time.
The efficiency and effectiveness of the recordkeeping training program was reviewed
prior to development of an amended Recordkeeping Plan in 2014.
The organisation’s induction program addresses employee roles and responsibilities
in regard to their compliance with the organisations recordkeeping plan.
The Staff Induction Manual was updated to reflect the new Recordkeeping Plan 2014
and at that time was submitted to the State Records Office.
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Government Policy Requirements
Substantive Equality
(Public Sector Commissioner’s Circular 2009-23: Implementation of the Policy
Framework for Substantive Equality)
The Commission has no obligation to implement or report against the Policy
Framework for Substantive Equality. The Commission’s substantial commitment to
achieving substantive equality in the Kimberley is evidenced elsewhere in this report.

Occupational Safety and Health
(Public Sector Commissioner’s Circular 2012-05: Code of Practice: Occupational
Safety and Health in the Western Australian Public Sector)
Statement of the Commission’s commitment to occupational safety and health and
injury management with an emphasis on Executive commitment:
The Commission’s Board and Senior Staff have continued to maintain a high
standard of occupational safety and health and injury management 2014/2015.
Description of the formal mechanism for consultation with employees on
occupational safety and health matters:
Given the small size of the organisation the mechanism of consultation continues to
be for the Commission’s Senior Staff and employees to liaise directly with one
another.
Statement of compliance with the injury management requirements of the Workers’
Compensation and Injury Management Act 1981:
To ensure ongoing compliance with the Workers’ Compensation and Injury
Management Act 1981 the Commission has completed an annual review of its
Workers Compensation and Injury Management Policy and Procedure.
Statement confirming that an assessment of the occupational safety and health
management system has been completed (within previous five years):
A self evaluation of the Commission’s Occupational Safety and Health management
system was completed in 2013/2014.
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Report of Annual performance for 2014/2015
Measure

Actual
2013/2014
Zero (0)

Target
2014/2015
Zero (0)

Actual
2013/2014
Zero (0)

Lost time injury and/or
disease incidence rate

Zero (0)

Zero (0)

Zero (0)

Lost time injury and/or
disease severity rate

Zero (0)

Zero (0)

Zero (0)

Percentage of injured
workers returned to work:
i) within 13 weeks
ii) within 26 weeks

i)

Greater than
or equal to
80% return to
work within
26 weeks

iii) Zero (0)
injured
workers
iv) Zero (0)
injured
workers
50%

Number of fatalities

Percentage of managers
trained in occupational
safety, health and injury
management
responsibilities

Zero (0)
injured
workers
ii) Zero (0)
injured
workers
50%

Greater than
or equal to
80%
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Comment on
Result

Due limited
availability of
training in the
Kimberley.

